
2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Agenda 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Page | 1

FALL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Friday, October 25, 2024 Ballroom, Student Union, UTK
10:45 a.m. (EDT)/9:45 a.m. (CDT) Knoxville, TN

AGENDA

I. Call to Order and Invocation

II. Roll Call

III. Opening Remarks by the Chair

IV. Requests to Address the Board (if any not heard in a Committee)

V. President’s Address —Information 

VI. Committee Reports ― Information
A. Audit and Compliance Committee
B. Education, Research and Service Committee
C. Finance and Administration Committee

VII. FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for
Specialized Units—Action................................................................................................... Tab 1 

VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, 
Classifying Students In-State and Out-of-State ― Action (Roll Call Vote) ...................Tab 2

IX. Appointment of Chancellor, UT Southern—Action ........................................................Tab 3 

X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture—Action ......................................Tab 4

XI. Consent Agenda—Action.....................................................................................................Tab 5
A. Minutes of Prior Meetings..............................................................................................Tab 5.1
B. 2025 Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule ...................................................................Tab 5.2
C. Annual Report to the General Assembly......................................................................Tab 5.3
D. Resolution Appointing a Managerial Group for U.S. Government Contracts ............Tab 5.4
E. Items from the Audit and Compliance Committee ....................................................Tab 5.5
F. Items from the Education, Research, and Service Committee ..................................Tab 5.6
G. Items from the Finance and Administration Committee ...........................................Tab 5.7

1 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Agenda 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Page | 2

[Note concerning items XI. E-G:  The Bylaws of the Board provide that any item unanimously approved by a 
committee that is meeting in conjunction with a meeting of the Board will be placed on the consent agenda of 
the Board meeting.  Therefore, any item that is not unanimously approved in committee will be moved to the 
regular agenda of the Board.  Further, any Trustee may request that an item on the consent agenda of the Board 
be moved to the regular agenda even if unanimously approved in committee.]

XII. Other Business

[Note:  Under the Bylaws of the Board, items not appearing on the agenda may be considered only upon an 
affirmative vote representing a majority of the total voting membership of the Board.  Other business necessary 
to come before the Board at this meeting should be brought to the Chair’s attention before the meeting.]

XIII. Closing Remarks and Adjournment

Informational Items
Annual Report – University of Tennessee Foundation ................................................................Tab 6.1
Annual Report – University of Chattanooga Foundation …………………………………….. Tab 6.2
Annual Institutional Review Executive Summary, UTHSC........................................................Tab 6.3

2 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VII. FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for Specialized Units—Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for 
Specialized Units

Type: Action

Presenter: David L. Miller, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Background Information

The Tennessee Higher Education Commission (THEC) will consider strategic initiative 
funding requests from UT and LGI specialized units during its fall quarterly meeting on 
November 7, 2024. UT’s specialized units include the Health Science Center, Institute of 
Agriculture, Space Institute, Institute for Public Service, and System Administration. 
Requests approved by THEC will go to the state Department of Finance & Administration 
for consideration of inclusion in the Governor’s FY 2025-26 budget proposal.

UT fiscal policy FI0112 (Budgeting Current Unrestricted Funds) requires Board approval 
for these requests. The President and Chief Financial Officer recommend requesting $3 
million recurring to expand UT Institute of Agriculture precision agriculture programs 
and initiatives. A summary of the request follows this memorandum.

Action

The Chair will call for a motion to recommend adoption of the following Resolution.

Resolved:

The Board of Trustees hereby approves the FY 2025-26 Operating Budget 
Appropriations Request for Specialized Units as presented in the meeting materials, 
which shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption, with authorization for the 
President and Chief Financial Officer to revise or add to these requests in response 
to: (1) developments related to state funding priorities that may arise during the 
upcoming legislative session, or (2) modified requests by the Chancellor/Vice 
President of a specialized unit.

1 

3 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VII. FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for Specialized Units—Action 

Precision Agriculture:  
Equipping Tennessee’s 
Farmers. Saving 
Tennessee’s Farms.

Agriculture is the key to Tennessee’s 
economic prosperity and quality of life 
as it is Tennessee’s number one industry, 
accounting for over $89 billion in economic 
impact and nearly 360,000 jobs. However, 
Tennessee’s farmers are faced with 
increasing pressure for competing land 
uses, as profitability and preservation 
of farmland becomes more challenging. 
Tennessee currently ranks third in the nation 
in terms of farmland acreage converted 
from agricultural use, and, over the next 
three years, the state is expected to lose an 
additional 2 million acres of farmland. 

Stemming these losses and competing 
for increasingly valuable land requires 
farms to use their available resources 
more efficiently. This is why an investment 
in Tennessee leadership of the precision 
agriculture field is crucial for Tennessee 
farmers and key to safeguarding our 
farms for future generations. Precision 
agriculture will enable the use of advanced 
technologies and newly available data to 
support agricultural innovation, efficiency, 
profitability, and sustainability. 

The University of Tennessee Institute of 
Agriculture (UTIA)—through AgResearch, 
Extension, the Herbert College of 
Agriculture, and the UT College of 
Veterinary Medicine—is uniquely 
positioned to lead the charge in precision 
agriculture with its expertise, resources, 
and commitment to advancing Tennessee’s 
agricultural sector statewide. This proposal 
is for $3.0 million in recurring funding 
to establish UTIA as the global leader in 
precision agriculture research initiatives and 
educational opportunities for Tennessee 
farmers. As a prime example, increased 
investments in precision agriculture will play 
a pivotal role in increasing the productivity 
and sustainability of Tennessee’s livestock 
sector. Poultry and beef cattle are two of 
Tennessee’s top agricultural commodities. In 
2022, Tennessee’s inventory included more 
than 190 million broiler chickens, leading 
to more than $972 million in cash receipts. 
Cattle and calves generated $687 million 
in cash receipts with more than 1.68 million 
head of cattle in 2023.

FY25-26 budget request for the 
UT Institute of Agriculture,  
$3M recurring

Precision agriculture makes 
farms more efficient and 
increases farmers’ return on 
investment by increasing their 
ability to observe, measure, 
and respond to variability. 

utia.tennessee.eduThe University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture

1 

4 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VII. FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for Specialized Units—Action 

Precision agriculture makes farms more 
efficient and increases farmers’ return 
on investment by increasing their ability 
to observe, measure, and respond to 
variability. This technology advances 
agricultural production by coupling real-
time, automated monitoring and innovative 
computational methods like artificial 
intelligence to enable early detection or 
warning of animal behavioral and health 
issues, plant diseases, and other variables 
that would impact productivity and 
profitability.

This funding would build upon UTIA’s 
existing precision agriculture team by 
adding expertise in critical technical areas, 
including artificial intelligence, data science, 
sensors/sensing technologies, precision 
animal nutrition, cybersecurity, and animal 
housing environment. This additional 
support would include faculty at full, 
associate, and assistant professor levels in 
research, extension, and teaching; research 
scientists; and technical support staff. The 
proposed state funding would have a strong 
return on investment. The output and 
impact of UTIA’s faculty continues to rise 
with competitive research funding awarded 
to the institute increasing by more than 40 
percent over the past four years. UTIA’s 
annual research expenditures exceeded 
$80 million for the first time in 2022. The 
institute aims to reach $150 million in 
research expenditures by 2030—and these 
innovations translate back to Tennessee 
farms and farmers through UT Extension. 

The investment of recurring funding would 
position UTIA to become a national and 
global leader in precision agriculture 
development and education, but, perhaps 
more importantly, it would allow UTIA 
to make significant strides in promoting 
the profitability and sustainability of 
Tennessee’s agricultural sector.

The investment of recurring 
funding would position UTIA to 
become a national and global 
leader in precision agriculture 
development and education, 
but, perhaps more importantly, 
it would allow UTIA to make 
significant strides in promoting 
the profitability and sustainability 
of Tennessee’s agricultural sector.

Robotic Milker

Poultry Facility Rendering

08/24  25-0254  The University of Tennessee is an EEO/AA/Title VI/Title IX/Section 504/ADA/ADEA institution in the provision of its education and employment programs and 
services. All qualified applicants will receive equal consideration for employment without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, sex, pregnancy, marital status, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, age, physical or mental disability, or covered veteran status.

utia.tennessee.eduThe University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture

1 

5 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Adoption of Permanent Rule to Amend Existing Rule Regarding 
Classifying Students In-State and Out-of-State

Type: Action

Presenter: Ryan Stinnett, General Counsel

Background Information

Various state and federal laws have recently been adopted that require or allow 
universities to classify certain out-of-state students as in-state students for tuition 
purposes.  One such law is Tennessee Public Chapter No. 1057, which requires public 
institutions of higher education to grant in-state tuition to a student who is the spouse or 
dependent child of a military service member, if certain requirements are met, including 
that the service member has lived in the state for at least one year, and both the service 
member and the spouse or dependent child are United States citizens or lawful 
permanent residents of the United States.  Additionally, a federal law found in The 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2024 (Public Law 118-42), provides that public 
institutions of higher education must charge students who are citizens of the Federated 
States of Micronesia, the Republic of the Marshall Islands, or the Republic of Palau tuition 
for attendance at a rate that is not greater than the rate charged for in-state-residents.  
Both laws took effect on July 1, 2024.

For the University of Tennessee to comply with these new laws as of their effective dates, 
the University was required to adopt an emergency amendment to its existing rule titled 
“Chapter 1720-01-01: Classifying Students In-State and Out-of-State.” That emergency 
amendment was adopted by the Board at its meeting on June 26, 2024, pursuant to the
emergency rulemaking process allowed under Tennessee Code § 4-5-208 of the Uniform 
Administrative Procedures Act (“UAPA”).  On September 18, 2024, that emergency rule 
was also approved by the Joint Government Operations Committee of the Tennessee 
General Assembly.  However, the emergency rule will remain effective for only 180 days, 
so prior to expiration of the emergency rule, the University must promulgate an amended
permanent rule regarding this topic.

Because new and amended state and federal laws regarding in-state and out-of-state 
classification are passed somewhat regularly, the proposed amendment to the University 
existing rule is intended to provide the University flexibility to adapt to and comply with 
both the current and any future changes to the law on this topic.  Accordingly, the 

2 

6 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

Page 2

proposed permanent amendment language would add the following catch-all category 
to the existing list of out-of-state students who are not required to pay out-of-state tuition: 
“Any other person who is required to be classified as an in-state student for tuition 
purposes by applicable federal law or regulation, or who is required or permitted to be 
classified as an in-state student for tuition purposes by applicable state law or 
regulation.”  

A public rulemaking hearing on the proposed permanent amendment to this rule will be 
held on October 21, 2024, pursuant to a Notice of Rulemaking hearing filed with the 
Tennessee Secretary of State on August 20, 2024.  Interested parties may provide oral or
written comments on the proposed rule amendment at the public hearing, either in 
person or via a virtual, livestream option that has been made available.  Also, interested 
parties are allowed to submit written comments pertaining to the rule directly to the 
General Counsel on or before October 14, 2024.  Any comments received on the proposed 
rule will be presented to the Board prior to consideration of this action item.

Attached is a redlined version of the University’s existing UAPA rule, which shows the 
permanent revisions that are proposed (which are identical to the changes adopted under 
the previous emergency amendment).  Upon adoption by the Board, the proposed 
permanent amendment to the University’s rule will be filed with the Tennessee Secretary 
of State under the rulemaking procedures of the UAPA.

Action

The Chair will call for a motion to recommend adoption of the following Resolution by 
the Board of Trustees:

Resolved:  

1. The proposed amendment to the University of Tennessee’s existing UAPA 
rule titled “Chapter 1720-01-01: Classifying Students In-State and Out-of-
State” is hereby approved as presented in the meeting materials, which shall 
be attached to this Resolution after adoption and shall become effective after 
completion of the rulemaking procedures under the Uniform Administrative 
Procedures Act.

2. The proper officers of the University shall be and hereby are authorized to 
take any and all such actions as may be required or which they may deem 
necessary or appropriate in order to implement the permanent rule upon it 
becoming effective.

2 

7 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

March, 2017 (Revised) 1

RULES 
OF

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE 
(ALL CAMPUSES)

CHAPTER 1720-01-01
CLASSIFYING STUDENTS IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1720-01-01-.01 Intent 1720-01-01-.06 Evidence to Considered for
1720-01-01-.02 Definitions Establishment of Domicile
1720-01-01-.03 Rules for Determination of Status 1720-01-01-.07 Appeal
1720-01-01-.04 Out-of-state Students Who Are Not 1720-01-01-.08 Effective Date for Reclassification

Required to Pay Out-of-State Tuition 1720-01-01-.09 Repealed
1720-01-01-.05 Presumption

1720-01-01-.01 INTENT. It is the intent that the public institutions of higher education in the State of 
Tennessee shall apply uniform rules, as described in these regulations and not otherwise, in determining 
whether students shall be classified “in-state” or “out-of-state” for fees and tuition purposes and for 
admission purposes.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; 
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015.

1720-01-01-.02 DEFINITIONS. Wherever used in these regulations:

“Public higher education institution” shall mean a university or community college supported
by appropriations made by the Legislature of this State.

“Residence” shall mean continuous physical presence and maintenance of a dwelling place 
within this State, provided that absence from the State for short periods of time shall not affect 
the establishment of a residence.

“Domicile” shall mean a person’s true, fixed, and permanent home and place of habitation; it is
the place where he or she intends to remain, and to which he or she expects to return when he 
or she leaves without intending to establish or having established a new domicile elsewhere.
Undocumented aliens cannot establish domicile in Tennessee, regardless of length of 
residence in Tennessee.

“Emancipated person” shall mean a person who has attained the age of eighteen (18) years 
and whose parents have entirely surrendered the right to the care, custody, and earnings of 
such person and are no longer under any legal obligation to support or maintain such person.

“Parent” shall mean a person’s father or mother. If there is a non-parental guardian or legal 
custodian of an unemancipated person, then “ parent” shall mean such guardian or legal 
custodian; provided, that there are not circumstances indicating that such guardianship or 
custodianship was created primarily for the purpose of conferring the status of an in-state 
student on such emancipated person.

“Continuous enrollment” or “continuously enrolled” shall mean enrollment at a public higher 
educational institution or institutions of this State as a full-time student, as such term is defined 
by the governing body of said public higher education institution or institutions, for a normal 
academic year or years or the appropriate portion or portions thereof since the beginning of
the period for which continuous enrollment is claimed. Such person need not

2 

8 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

CLASSIFYING STUDENTS IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE CHAPTER 1720-01-01

March, 2017 (Revised) 2

(Rule 1720-01-01-.02, continued)
enroll in summer sessions or other such inter-sessions beyond the normal academic year in 
order that his or her enrollment be deemed “continuous.” Enrollment shall be deemed 
continuous notwithstanding lapses in enrollment occasioned solely by the scheduling of the 
commencement and/or termination of the academic years, or appropriate portion thereof, of 
the public higher educational institutions in which such person enrolls.

“U.S. Armed Forces” shall mean the U.S. Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, and Coast 
Guard.

“Veteran” means:

a former member of the U.S. Armed Forces; or

a former or current member of a reserve or Tennessee national guard unit who was 
called into active military service of the United States, as defined in Tennessee Code 
Annotated § 58-1-102.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976;
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Amendment filed October 19, 1995; effective February 28, 1996. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015;
effective August 25, 2015.

1720-01-01-.03 RULES FOR DETERMINATION OF STATUS.

Every person having his or her domicile in this State shall be classified “in-state” for fee and 
tuition purposes and for admission purposes.

Every person not having his or her domicile in this State shall be classified “out-of-state” for fee 
and tuition purposes and for admission purposes.

The domicile of an unemancipated person is that of his or her parent, except as provided 
in paragraph (4) of this Section .03. Unemancipated students of divorced parents shall be 
classified “in-state” when one (1) parent, regardless of custodial status, is domiciled in 
Tennessee, except as provided in paragraph (4) of this Section .03.

A student shall be classified as “in-state” for fee and tuition purposes if the student is a citizen 
of the United States, has resided in Tennessee for at least one (1) year immediately prior to 
admission, and has:

Graduated from a Tennessee public secondary school;

Graduated from a private secondary school that is located in Tennessee; or

Earned a Tennessee high school equivalency diploma.

The spouse of a student classified as “in-state” shall also be classified “in-state.”

All classifications shall be subject to the Eligibility Verification for Entitlements Act, Tennessee 
Code Annotated § 4-58-101 et seq.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; and Public Acts of 
Tennessee 1807, Chapter 64. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; effective
December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986. Amendment
filed October 19, 1995; effective February 28, 1996. Repeal and new rule filed March 27, 2015; effective
August 25, 2015.

2 

9 

https://a.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000039&cite=TNSTS58-1-102&originatingDoc=N16D5A150D9A411E3A9E6B931E23B7C75&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)


2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

CLASSIFYING STUDENTS IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE CHAPTER 1720-01-01

March, 2017 (Revised) 3

1720-01-01-.04 OUT-OF-STATE STUDENTS WHO ARE NOT REQUIRED TO PAY OUT-OF-STATE 
TUITION.

An unemancipated, currently enrolled student shall be reclassified out-of-state should 
his or her parent, having theretofore been domiciled in the State, remove from the State. 
However, such student shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition nor be treated as an out-
of-state student for admission purposes so long as his or her enrollment at a public higher
educational institution or institutions shall be continuous.

An unemancipated person whose parent is not domiciled in this State but is a member of 
the armed forces and stationed at Fort Campbell pursuant to military orders shall be classified 
out-of-state, but shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition. Such a person, while in 
continuous attendance toward the degree for which he or she is currently enrolled, shall not be 
required to pay out-of-state tuition if his or her parent thereafter is transferred on military orders.

Part-time students who are not domiciled in this State but who are employed full-time in the 
State shall be classified out-of-state but shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition. This 
shall apply to part-time students who are employed in the State by more than one employer,
resulting in the equivalent of full-time employment.

A member of the U.S. Armed Forces on active duty for more than thirty (30) days and who has 
a permanent duty station in the State of Tennessee (or the spouse or dependent child of such 
a member) who should be classified out-of-state in accordance with other provisions of these 
regulations will be classified out-of-state but shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition. 
This provision shall continue to apply to such a member, spouse, or dependent child while 
continuously enrolled at that public higher education institution, notwithstanding a subsequent 
change in the permanent duty station of the member to a location outside the State.

A person who is domiciled in the Kentucky counties of Fulton, Hickman, or Graves shall be 
classified out-of-state and shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition at The University of 
Tennessee at Martin if qualified for admission. This exemption is on condition that Murray State 
University in Murray, Kentucky, continues to admit Tennessee residents from selected 
Tennessee counties to enroll at that institution without payment of out-of-state tuition.

Any dependent child not domiciled in Tennessee but who qualifies and is selected to receive
a scholarship under the “Dependent Children Scholarship Act” (T.C.A. § 49-4-704) because 
his or her parent is a law enforcement officer, fireman, or emergency medical service 
technician who was killed or totally and permanently disabled while performing duties within 
the scope of employment, shall be classified out-of-state but shall not be required to pay out-
of-state tuition.

A veteran, or any individual entitled to the veteran’s educational benefits, enrolled in any public 
institution of higher education in this State shall not be required to pay out-of-state tuition or 
any out-of-state fee, if the veteran or the eligible individual:

Is eligible for post-9/11 GI Bill benefits or Montgomery GI Bill benefits; and

Enrolls in a public institution of higher education, after satisfying all admission 
requirements, within three (3) years after the date of discharge as reflected on the 
veteran’s certificate of release or discharge from active duty, Form DD-214, or an 
equivalent document.

2 

10 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

CLASSIFYING STUDENTS IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE CHAPTER 1720-01-01

(Rule 1720-01-01-.04, continued)

March, 2017 (Revised) 4

To continue to qualify for in-state tuition and fees after three (3) years have passed from the 
date of discharge as reflected on the veteran’s certificate of release or discharge from active 
duty, Form DD-214, or an equivalent document, a veteran or eligible individual shall:

Maintain continuous enrollment (as defined by the public institution of higher education 
in which the veteran is enrolled); and

Demonstrate objective evidence of established residency in this State by presenting at 
least two (2) of the following:

Register to vote in the State of Tennessee; or

Demonstrate by objective evidence intent to be a resident of the State of 
Tennessee by obtaining at least two (2) of the following:

Proof of voter registration in this State;

A Tennessee driver license;

A Tennessee motor vehicle registration;

Proof of established employment in this State; or

Other documentation clearly evidencing domicile or residence in the state, 
as determined by THEC.

Students not domiciled in Tennessee but who are selected to participate in institutional 
undergraduate honors programs specified by the public higher education institution in which 
the student is enrolled shall be classified out-of-state but shall not be required to pay out-of-
state tuition.

A “covered individual” under the federal Veterans Access, Choice, and Accountability Act of 
2014, Public Law 113-146, who maintains continuous enrollment at the same public institution 
of higher education.

Any other person who is required to be classified as an in-state student for tuition purposes by 
applicable federal law or regulation, or who is required or permitted to be classified as an in-
state student for tuition purposes by applicable state law or regulation.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 49-7-1304, 49-7-1305, 49-9-105, 49-9-209, and 49-9-209(e); Public Acts of
Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64; 20 U.S.C. § 
1015d; and 38 U.S.C. § 3679. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; effective 
December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986. Amendment
filed October 18, 1989; effective January 29, 1990. Amendment filed October 19, 1995; effective February
28, 1996. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015. Amendments filed
December 28, 2016; effective March 28, 2017.

1720-01-01-.05 PRESUMPTION. Unless the contrary appears from clear and convincing evidence, it shall
be presumed that an emancipated person does not acquire domicile in this State while enrolled as a full-
time or part-time student at any public or private higher educational institution in this State, as such status 
is defined by such institution.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; 
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015.

2 

11 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01, Classifying Students In-State and Ou... 

CLASSIFYING STUDENTS IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE CHAPTER 1720-01-01

(Rule 1720-01-01-.04, continued)

March, 2017 (Revised) 5

1720-01-01-.06 EVIDENCE TO BE CONSIDERED FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF DOMICILE. If a
person asserts that he or she has established domicile in this State he or she has the burden of proving 
that he or she has done so. Such a person is entitled to provide to the public higher educational institution
by which he seeks to be classified or reclassified in-state, any and all evidence which he or she believes 
will sustain his or her burden of proof. Said institution will consider any and all evidence provided to it 
concerning such claim of domicile but will not treat any particular type or item of such evidence as 
conclusive evidence that domicile has or has not been established.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976;
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015.

1720-01-01-.07 APPEAL. The classification officer of each public higher educational institution shall
be responsible for initially classifying students “in-state” or “out-of-state.” Appropriate procedures shall be
established by each such institution by which a student may appeal his or her initial classification.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; 
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015.

1720-01-01-.08 EFFECTIVE DATE FOR RECLASSIFICATION. If a student classified out-of-state applies
for in-state classification and is subsequently so classified his or her in-state classification shall be effective
as of the date on which reclassification was sought. However, out-of-state tuition will be charged for any 
semester during which reclassification is sought and obtained unless application for reclassification is 
made to the classification officer on or before the last day of regular registration of that semester.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, 
Chapter 64; and T.C.A. § 49-9-105. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; 
effective December 23, 1976. Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.
Repeal and new rule filed May 27, 2015; effective August 25, 2015.

1720-01-01-.09 REPEALED.

Authority: Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5; and Public Acts of Tennessee 
1807. Administrative History: Original rule filed November 23, 1976; effective December 23, 1976.
Repeal filed May 27, 1986; effective August 12, 1986.

2 

12 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - IX. Appointment, Initial Compensation, and Other Terms of Employment of University Officer — Action 

Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Appointment, Initial Compensation, and other Terms of 
Employment of the Chancellor of the University of Tennessee 
Southern (UT Southern)

Type: Action

Presenter: Randy Boyd, President

Background Information

As authorized by the Bylaws of the Board (Section 6.5), the Chair has designated this item for 
action by the Board without prior review and recommendation by the Executive Committee.  

Under the University’s Bylaws, the President of the University is authorized to appoint 
interim or acting Chancellors.  President Boyd appointed Dr. Linda C. Martin to serve as the 
Interim Chancellor of UT Southern, effective July 1, 2022. In January 2024, President Boyd 
announced that Dr. Martin had agreed to extend her leadership role at UT Southern through 
the next academic year, 2024-25.

Under Dr. Martin’s leadership, the campus has made remarkable progress in a very brief 
period of time.  A few of the most significant items are listed below:

∑ Total enrollment has grown from 934 students (Fall 2022) to 1046 students (Fall 2024), 
representing a 12% increase

∑ First-year retention rates are at an all-time high of 77.2%, representing an 11% 
increase;

∑ Overall retention rate is also at an all-time high of 79.5%, representing an increase of 
9%;

∑ Six-year graduation rates have also improved by 6%;
∑ Last year, UT Southern had an all-time record in fundraising (in excess of $6 million);
∑ Endowments have grown by over $1 million;
∑ Five new properties contiguous to the campus have been acquired; and
∑ Safety and security upgrades of $4.2 million.

In light of these extraordinary achievements, I am recommending the removal of the 
“interim” title and the appointment of Linda C. Martin, PhD, as Chancellor of the University 
of Tennessee Southern, to acknowledge her dedicated service to and important legacy in the 
history and future of the campus.

3 

13 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - IX. Appointment, Initial Compensation, and Other Terms of Employment of University Officer — Action 

Page 2 of 2

In accordance with the University’s Bylaws, the Board shall approve the appointment of 
chancellors and their compensation and other terms of employment. In this regard, I am 
recommending that no adjustments be made to the current compensation or other terms of 
employment.  Dr. Martin is well-known for her many roles since joining the UT System, and 
a brief biographical profile is attached.

Board Action

The Chair will call for a motion for consideration and adoption of the following Resolution.

Resolved:  

The Board of Trustees hereby approves the appointment of Linda C. Martin, PhD, as 
Chancellor of the University of Tennessee Southern, which designation shall be effective
retroactively to July 1, 2022, with compensation and all other terms of employment 
remaining unchanged.

3 

14 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - IX. Appointment, Initial Compensation, and Other Terms of Employment of University Officer — Action 

Linda C. Martin

Linda C. Martin first joined the University of Tennessee System 
in November 2017 as the System Vice President of Academic 
Affairs and Student Success. In June 2021, she also served as 
the Interim Senior Vice Chancellor & Senior Vice President of 
the UT Institute of Agriculture, and since July 2022, has served 
as the Interim Chancellor for UT Southern. Martin earned her 
undergraduate degree in Animal Science from The Ohio State 
University, and M.S. and Ph.D. degrees in Animal Breeding and 
Genetics from Virginia Polytechnic Institute & State University 
and Colorado State University, respectively. 

Prior to her leadership roles at the University of Tennessee, 
Martin served as the Associate Dean and Director of Academic Affairs in the College of Food, 
Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences at The Ohio State University (2007-2017) and Assistant 
Dean for Academic Programs in the College of Agricultural Sciences & Natural Resources at 
Oklahoma State University (2002-2007) following 15 years of successful teaching and advising 
at Kansas State University.

In 2011, Martin was named the Sanford G. Price and Isabelle P. Barbee Chair in Teaching, 
Learning and Advising in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences at Ohio 
State and in 2014, was appointed Director of The Ohio State University’s Second-year
Transformational Experience Program (STEP) with the Office of Academic Affairs in coordination 
with the Office of Student Life. In this role, Martin provided leadership for the University’s second-
year mentoring program which offered students the opportunity to engage in a transformational 
academic experience (internship, leadership, service learning & community service, study 
abroad, undergraduate research, or artistic & creative endeavor); engage with a faculty mentor; 
and enhance personal, professional and academic success.

Her leadership contributions to teaching are numerous. At Oklahoma State, Martin provided
leadership for faculty development in the College of Agricultural Sciences and Natural resources 
(CASNR); worked with the CASNR Effective Teaching Committee to enhance teaching 
effectiveness college wide; and served in an advisory role to the OSU Institute for Teaching and 
Learning Excellence. At Ohio State, Martin provided leadership for academic programs in the 
College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences (CFAES) including academic 
programs at the OSU Agricultural Technical Institute (OSU-ATI) in Wooster. Her responsibilities 
at Ohio State included providing leadership for CFAES student recruitment, student development, 
faculty development, teaching excellence, academic advising, first-year experience, study 
abroad, undergraduate research, multi-cultural student services, and career development. Under 
her leadership undergraduate enrollment in CFAES grew over 25%; undergraduate participation 
in study abroad reached nearly 50%; and 4-yr graduation rate has climbed to over 70%.

In her role as System Vice President of Academic Affairs and Student Success, Martin worked
closely with campus chief academic and student affairs officers to oversee academic and student 

3 

15 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - IX. Appointment, Initial Compensation, and Other Terms of Employment of University Officer — Action 

affairs for the UT System. She coordinated the development of academic strategic plans, 
academic policy, new academic programs, admission and retention standards, faculty handbook 
revisions, and system-wide student success efforts. Additionally, she served as staff to the 
Education, Research, and Service Committee of the UT Board of Trustees and worked closely 
with the Tennessee Higher Education Commission (THEC) on higher education initiatives across 
the state. As the Senior Vice Chancellor and Senior Vice President of the UT Institute of 
Agriculture, Martin provided leadership for the statewide presence of the Institute which included 
the Herbert College of Agriculture, UT College of Veterinary Medicine, UT Extension, UT 
AgResearch, and the UT Gardens, the State Botanical Garden of Tennessee.

Both nationally and regionally, Martin remains highly involved with professional affiliations and
teaching improvement. She served as the Academic Programs Section (APS) representative to 
the Board on Agriculture Assembly (BAA) Policy Board of Directors and as the past Vice-Chair; 
served as the Chair of the Board of Directors for LEAD21 Leadership Development Program; 
provided leadership for the second residential session of the Food Systems Leadership Institute 
(FSLI); served on the Executive Board of AG*IDEA; and is a past Chair of the North Central 
Region Academic Programs Section (APS) of APLU. Additionally, Linda served on the Board of 
Directors for the American Society of Animal Science (ASAS); as the Central Regional Director 
and National President for the North American Colleges and Teachers of Agriculture (NACTA); 
as a member of the NACTA Committee for Improvement of College Teaching of Agriculture; and 
chaired the Undergraduate/Graduate Teaching Committee for ASAS/ADSA/PSA. 

Martin is known nationally for her record of teaching and advising excellence, and her dedication 
and commitment to teaching improvement. During her career she has received of over 25 different 
college, regional and national awards for teaching, advising, and/or leadership excellence 
including The Ohio State University Trailblazer Award (2022) for her pioneering work in learning 
outcomes assessment; The National Agricultural Alumni Development Association (NAADA)
Above and Beyond Partner Award (2023); the North American Colleges and Teachers of 
Agriculture Distinguished Educator Award (2007); American Society of Animal Science 
Distinguished Teacher Award (2006); North American Colleges and Teachers of Agriculture 
(NACTA) Teaching Award of Excellence (2001); and the National USDA Excellence in College 
and University Teaching in Food and Agriculture Sciences Award (1998). Martin is a graduate of
Leadership Tennessee, a Food Systems Leadership Institute (FSLI) Fellow, and holds the 
distinction of being the first woman inducted into The Ohio State University Animal Science Hall 
of Fame. 

3 

16 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

Page 1 of 1

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture (UTIA)

Type: Action

Presenter: Keith Carver, Senior Vice Chancellor/Senior Vice President, UTIA

Background Information

Pursuant to the University Bylaws, the Board of Trustees is responsible for approving the 
strategic plan for the University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture (UTIA). The 
responsibilities of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees include making a 
recommendation to the Board on the strategic plan for each campus and institute. As 
permitted by the Bylaws, the Board Chair has placed this item on the agenda of the full Board 
meeting for presentation, discussion, and action. 

Dr. Carver will present an overview of UTIA’s proposed five-year Strategic Plan – Growing 
Greatness (2025-2030), and a copy of the plan is attached. The Strategic Plan has the support 
and recommendation of Chancellor Donde Plowman (UT Knoxville) and President Randy 
Boyd

Board Action

The Chair will call for a motion to adopt the following resolution.

Resolved:

The Board of Trustees hereby approves UTIA’s proposed five-year Strategic Plan –
Growing Greatness (2025-2030), as presented in the meeting materials, a copy of which 
shall be attached to this resolution following adoption.

4 

17 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

18 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ���������	
���	����
��
�	��	��		
�������	
��
���������	
�
�
��	���
����	�
�	�	�
���
 ���!"�	�� �	!
�	�	����	���
	!��������
��!
	#�	���
��	��	
��!
!	��	�
$	���
%�	�
&��������
	�	��
!��
����
�!!�	��
��'	
��
���	��(�
'���
��	����
���	����
��	
��
��	
�	 
���!"�����
���	����
������	�
��
���������	
�
��	
��������
 	
��	
��)�	��
���	!
��
�	��	
�	��	��		
��!
*	���!�
��	
������	
�
��'	
��
��
��$	�	�����
��
+#�	�����
��	
�	�*	��
,���	�	
��
���������	�
��!
��	
,���	�	
��
-	�	�����
.	!��	�
���	��	��
��	�	
����
�����*����	
��
��	��	
�������!��
���������	�
�
���������	�
�������
�	�����	����!
��	
��	��	�����
��	"�	��
�����	��
����
�
���
���!'��
��
	����	
 	
��	
�	����
���
����	�
������
��!
 ���!
��
��	
���	��
�	�	�
����*�	�
���	��	��
 	
 ��
������	
��
�	�
��	
*��
����
��� ��
��	���	��
���
�	���
��
��'	�
/0123
45670689:;<=
>;?9
@AB:?9CC<=
B:D
89:;<=
>;?9
E=9F;D9:GHI
J:FG;GKG9
<L
MN=;?KCGK=9O

4 

19 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ����������������	���������	
�������������������������������������� ���! ����" ��!#�������" #�����������" �$��������%!��������������#�&�������������'���������������(���������������)�*���+�������"����*#�����"�''����*#�����"�������'#����� �'�#������������'��������'���( �������&��!��������!�����,(-$����"���*��!���������'��������$���,(-$���"���*#������#���������#����������������� ����������������"�����&�*��"����������&�� �� �����������.�/0012345607�478�/0994:0345607.�/32456;65<�478�=6>?0;23<.�@A4965<�B30C34D>�478�E23;6?2>.�F??0A754:6965<�478�G752C365<.�H347>143275�478�G7527560749�/0DDA76?45607
I

4 

20 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture �����������	����
�������������	������������������������������������������ !��!"� ���#�$�%��"� ��� �&�"�����$�'�!���!(�)*+,�-.�/011-2234�20�4353607-89�2010::0;<.�63=43:.�204=>?�*@:0A9@�=�1A62-B=/3234�=77:0=/@C�;3�7:-0:-2-D3�-8-2-=2-53.�=-134�=2�/A62-5=2-89�2=6382C�B0.23:-89�/082-8A0A.�63=:8-89C�=84�3170;3:-89�-84-5-4A=6.�20�2@:-53?���(E!���� �� ����FE$!�$��E"�� ���G���!� H���I�����J"$�K���( ��J��F $��� ��J�� ���L��H ��J)*+,�-.�434-/=234�20�-17631382-89�7:0=/2-53�13=.A:3.�2@=2�=44:3..�2@3�/01763M�/@=663893.�B=/-89�=9:-/A62A:3?�N3�31O:=/3�=�@06-.2-/�=77:0=/@�20�B0.23:�:3.-6-38/3�=84�7:0.73:-2>�;-2@-8�60/=6C�8=2-08=6C�=84�960O=6�B004�.>.231.?
P

4 

21 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ��������	
��
������
������
���
�������	
��
������
���
�����������
 !"#$
"
 %&'("!
)'!*
(+)',-+
%($
)*.'-/%(%'/
"/0
%/(*-)"(%'/
'1
(+*
2/*
3*"!(+
.'/.* (4
567)".%/-
(+*
2/*
3*"!(+
"  )'".+8
9+%.+
,/0*)$.')*$
(+*
%/(*).'//*.(*0/*$$
'1
+,6"/8
"/%6"!8
"/0
*/&%)'/6*/("!
+*"!(+8
����
%$
,/%:,*!#
 '$%(%'/*0
('
$ *")+*"0
%/%(%"(%&*$
"%6*0
"(
7'!$(*)%/-
+*"!(+
',(.'6*$
%/
�*//*$$**
"/0
7*#'/04;������	
��
<������=�����
��
�	��>�������
<����>��
���
��
��������=�����
��
?�������������
1'$(*)$
.'!!"7')"(%&*
 ")(/*)$+% $
"/0
%//'&"(%&*
%/%(%"(%&*$
('
)*"!%@*
*.'/'6%.
$,$("%/"7%!%(#
1')
(+*
.'66,/%(%*$
9*
$*)&*4
A*.'-/%@%/-
(+*
.'//*.(%'/
'1
*.'/'6%.
 )'$ *)%(#
"/0
.'66,/%(#
9*!!B7*%/-8
9*
 )%')%(%@*
$,$("%/"7!*
0*&*!' 6*/(
$()"(*-%*$
(+"(
*6 '9*)
)*$%0*/($
"/0
7,$%/*$$*$
"!%C*4
D%(+
"
.'66%(6*/(
('
*/.',)"-%/-
%//'&"(%'/
"/0
.'!!"7')"(%'/8
',)
')-"/%@"(%'/
%$
0*0%."(*0
('
7,%!0%/-
"
 )'$ *)',$
"/0
$,$("%/"7!*
1,(,)*4;����>��	
���
<���>���	
E������
F����>�
���
�
��������=�
;����������/
(+*
 ,)$,%(
'1
"
(+)%&%/-
"/0
$,$("%/"7!*
1,(,)*
1')
�*//*$$**8
����
%$
.'66%((*0
('
*/+"/.%/-
"/0
 )'(*.(%/-
',)
/"(,)"!
)*$',).*$
"/0
1'$(*)%/-
"
$,$("%/"7!*
*/&%)'/6*/(4
2,)
"  )'".+
)*1!*.($
"
7"!"/.*
7*(9**/
+,6"/
 )'$ *)%(#
"/0
*/&%)'/6*/("!
9*!!B7*%/-4
G

4 

22 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

��������	��	
���������������
������������������������ �������!������!�!���"#����!$�%&'()*+,-./(012�34/45.60�/4.36(6)�47843(4694:�.34�03.6:;<3=.0(54�.6>�;<:043�>44843�-6>43:0.6>(6)2�93(0(9./�0*(6?(6)2�.6>�:?(//�>454/<8=460@�A*4:4�47843(4694:�.34�0*<-)*0;-//1�>4:()64>�0<�./()6�B(0*�/4.3643:C�644>:2�(60434:0:2�.6>�34./+B<3/>�.88/(9.0(<6:@�D

������E��E��� 4 

23 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ����������	�
�	����
�����	����	������	������	��	������	��� ���!"#	$%&'()*(	+,(	%-./('	01	0%23%(	&0-'*(*	)%4	&'(4(%+3)23%5	)*	6(22	)*	&0%+3%-3%5	(4-&)+30%	7'05').*	84(5'((	*((93%5	)%4	%0%:4(5'((	*((93%5;<#	$%&'()*(	%-./('	01	7)'+3&37)%+*	(%'022(4	3%	0%23%(	2()'%3%5	84(5'((	*((93%5	)%4	%0%:4(5'((	*((93%5;<#	$%&'()*3%5	)&&(**	+0	0%23%(	3%10'.)+30%	)%4	'(*0-'&(*	10'	*(21:5-34(4	2()'%3%5<	����	����	� �=���	>?����@A	 ���=���	��� ���!	���� ������"#	$%&'()*(	%-./('	01	)%4	7)'+3&37)+30%	3%	(B7('3(%+3)2	2()'%3%5	0770'+-%3+3(*	0'	,35,:3.7)&+	(B7('3(%&(*	20&)22C	)%4	520/)22C<#	$%&'()*(	%-./('	01	0770'+-%3+3(*	)D)32)/2(	10'	*+)9(,024('*E	2()4('*E	)%4	&0%*+3+-(%+*	+0	7'0D34(	1((4/)&9	0%	7'05').	'(2(D)%&C	)%4	%((4*<#	$%&'()*(	%-./('	01	+()&,3%5	)%4	2()'%3%5	7'01(**30%)2	4(D(207.(%+	0770'+-%3+3(*	011('(4	10'	)%4	)++(%4(4	/C	7('*0%%(2<#	$%&'()*(	*+-4C	)/'0)4	7)'+3&37)+30%<

����	����	������	������	��	 ����������	���	F���G��GF���	��!�!�H���"	#	$%&'()*(	3%	'(*34(%+3)2	'(+(%+30%	)%4	5')4-)+30%	')+(*<#	$%&'()*(	+,(	'(*34(%+3)2	*+-4(%+*<#	$%&'()*(	7)'+3&37)+30%	3%	1)&(:+0:1)&(	IB+(%*30%	)%4	0-+'()&,	7'05').*<����	����	J?���	�����������	���K	���	�?�������"	#	$%&'()*(	)&&(**	+0	)	/'0)4('	)-43(%&(	63+,	'(*7(&+	+0	4(.05')7,3&*	)%4	60'910'&(	&)+(50'3(*<		#	$%&'()*(	%-./('	01	%)+30%)2	)%4	3%+('%)+30%)2	7)'+3&37)%+*	3%															0-'	7'05').*<#	$%&'()*(	7)'+%('	(%5)5(.(%+	3%	4(D(2073%5	%(6	7'05').*	10'	)%				(D(':&,)%53%5	2)%4*&)7(<LM��N��	�
�	O�����P	��� ����	�K�	�?HJ� 	�F	�������	���� �����!	���K	��?��������	�FF� ��!�	���	� �! �H�	�� ���	����"P	��� ����	?��� ! ��?���	�� ���H���	��	�K�	Q� J� �	R����!�	�F	�! ��?��? �"S��H���TUVWVXYZ	[\	V\][]̂\]	_̂]̂ [̀X	V_ab[̀ Ŷ\	ZX[̀cYde	̀Y	V\f[\bV	[bbVgg	̀Y	Y\X̂\V	̂\cYde[̀ Ŷ\	[\_	dVgYadbVg	cYd	gVXch]â_V_	XV[d\̂\]i	 j

�
k

l
m

4 

24 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

��������	�
�����
�������
�����	�������������������������������������������������������� ��������!���!�"#$%&'%()*�+,$-&.�$/�,)0)1,2.�1&�3456�-'77�8)�'%&)+,17�'%�8,$1*)%'%+�&.)�'%0&'&(&)90�':;12&�1%*�)7)<1&'%+�'&0�%1&'$%17�,);(&1&'$%=�3456�0.$(7*�8)�>%$-%�10�&.)�+$?&$�*)0&'%1&'$%�/$,�&$;�,)0)1,2.),0@�+,1*(1&)�0&(*)%&0@�1%*�/(%*'%+�;1,&%),0�&$�;),/$,:�810'2�1%*�1;;7')*�,)0)1,2.�&.1&�1**,)00)0�2(,,)%&�1%*�):),+'%+�,)7)<1%&�2.177)%+)0=A

��	��B
��B�C 4 

25 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ����������	
���	����	�����	���������������	�����������	�	������������������	�������� !�"� �# $�%&''(���'��)*%*( �+*,�%�()-�.#�/* !��..(��%0���&''(���1�23��/#���4+*/#���5 *�*#�*,�0�����������������	�������	��������������	���������	���6������������	���4( %��&)��#�7�8�9:� �;(&+��<�.#)*+*�<0���&''(���)( %��&)�*( �(.�#�'�(��* �*  (,#�*( �)� ���0�����������������	����=���=�����������������	
�	�����	����5 )��#%����.����$�'&>+*)#�*( %�><�?@�'��)� ��# $�)*�#�*( %�AB9* $�8C�><������D?�'��)� �0���5 )��#%��BEF2�F�'(�����%�#�)"��8'� $*�&��%�><�?@�'��)� �0GHIJKLMN�OPQ�RMISTJNU����	��	�	��������������������	��	��		��V��=V������������W
����	XYZ[\�]Ẑ _̂̀ Z[_abcd̂e�fbag�bhijka[e�l_[ahd[k�_hi�ka_\dgẐid[k�aZ�][d_ad�kẐjabZhk�ag_a�_ii[dkk�m_[nbho�bhhZc_abZhk�_hi�l[Zadbh�hddikp q

rst
uISOIMvTMN�OPQ�rJITKPN

4 

26 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

��������	�
�����	����������������������������������������������������� ����!��"#$�%$&'()$*%$+�),�+(-.+�/$0�1)22/3)(/+')$�/22)4.�5%)52%�+)�0%&%2)5�1(%/+'&'+6�/$0�+/7%�('.7.�+)�)&%(1)*%�)3.+/12%.�/$0�/18'%&%�'$$)&/+'&%�)-+1)*%.�,/(�.-(5/..'$9�+8).%�),�'$0'&'0-/2�%,,)(+.:��
;<=>�?@AA�BCDEFGHIB�HCJ�@CDGBHKB�DEAAHLEGHM@ECNO�P$1(%/.%�$-*3%(�),�5/(+$%(.8'5.�4'+8�%Q+%($/2�'$0-.+('%.R�/9%$1'%.R�/$0�5()0-1%(.�/.�4%22�/.�'$+%($/2�.6.+%*S4'0%�1/*5-.%.�/$0�'$.+'+-+%.:O�P$1(%/.%�$-*3%(�),�9(/$+�5()5)./2.�/$0�9(/$+�0)22/(.�4'+8�1()..S,-$1+')$/2�1)22/3)(/+')$�/1()..�*'..')$.:O�P$1(%/.%�/4/(%$%..�/$0�-+'2'T/+')$�),�U)'$+�(%.)-(1%.:O�P*52%*%$+�0%,'$%0�/$0�'$+%(0%5%$0%$+�5%(,)(*/$1%�*%+('1.�+8/+�0('&%�/18'%&%*%$+�/$0�U)'$+�.-11%..:VW

�

������	��	���
�XYZX[\][̂�Z_̀ ��aX]b_̂

4 

27 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

����������	
��
	��
������	���	�
�
������
�	�
�������
�����
������������� !"���#$���%�&��'�#((#�' �)')���$#��)�*(���#��+�',��)�+�����#���',���'�'�-�����������.#)�'��#!! �)��')#���$$#�'�-�����������%��/���,)(�'��!�/�&�%#(!��'�$#� ��/�#���$$��')&��)�'����%��#!! �)��')#�����/�'��!����# �'�")%)'0-
�����������	��	�1����	����
����2������
�������3���4�/ ���/ (%)��')&��(�#�������#��'##%����/�'����)')#��'#��#��)�'��'�)��')' '�*5)/��'##%����/��0�'�!�-��6%���%0�/�$)�����/��#!! �)��'��',����%�')#��,)(����/��#%���"�'5����78�9:�78�;�#<&)%%�:���/�78�=0�'�!�9/!)�)�'��')#����/��,���/����&)���-��>�&�%#(���/�)!(%�!��'����&)���%�&�%��+���!��'��$#���/!)�)�'��')&�� �)'��'#��#!! �)��'��',���<'��'���/���' ���#$����&)����(�#&)/�/���/�/�$)�����������(#�����<(��'�')#��- ??

@ABCDEFG�HIJ�KFBLMCGN��
�	��	���	�
	����3��������	���	O�
����
��O��
���
�	�
����
�������1������
���N��
�	��	�
��1	������	�	P�
���22����
���	�������
Q2	���
�����	��
�����������	�����	O�	R2�
��
����	�����	
	�����22��2����	�SR��2�	TUVWX�YZ�[\]̂ _̀ Ŷa�\�bc_dâ YeYd̂ �fbdab\g�ed�_c[chb\ec�cgf[diccZ�Ze\ecjYkcl�mc�jY[[�_d̂ eŶ]c�ed�̀dZe�cgf[dicc�\ffbc_Y\eYd̂ �cnĉ eZ�\̂ k�ĉ _d]b\ac�ŶofcbZd̂ �a\ècbŶaZ�\_bdZZ�èc�Ze\eclp q

4 

28 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ���������	
���	���������
�������������������������������������������������� ���������! �"��"�!!�������#$%&&'()*+,-�+�*.-+/�&-00+1-�%2�345670�*%&8-..)(1�0,%/9�%2�:%;�;-�-<'*+,-=�<)0*%>-/�0%.',)%(0=�+(<�)&8+*,�%'/�0,+,-�+(<�;%/.<?

@A ����B���B	��

4 

29 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ����������	
�
��������
��
������
�����
�����	
����
	��
����	�
��
���������
��
�����
�
�������������	����������������� !"#$"�#%#!"�"$$�&'�()"�*+�,�$(&!-�#.&�/�*+�0�&12344"�'# 54(-�#�6�$(#''7��"%�+"��"$$""�!"$36"�($7�#�6�5!8#��!"$36"�($9��:&�(3�5"�(&�5$"�."63#�.&�3(&!3�/�(&&4$�(&�#�#4-;"��5.8"!�&'�!"# )"$7�2#45"7�#�6�/"&/!#<)3 #4�63$(!385(3&�9
������������
��
���	��������������
����������������
	����
=������=���	�
���
��>���	���>����	�������� !"#$"�<#!(3 3<#(3&��3��*+�,�".<4&-""�&!3"�(#(3&��()!&5/)�.#�6#(&!-�#(("�6#� "9���� !"#$"��5.8"!�&'�$(56"�($�<#!(3 3<#(3�/�3��&!3"�(#(3&��#�6?&!�4"#!�3�/�.&654"@$A�#8&5(�*+�,�#�6�()"�4#�6B/!#�(�.3$$3&�9��:!"#("�#�!"/54#!�.""(3�/�'&!�#44�*+�,� &..5�3 #(&!$�(&�$)#!"�C�&%4"6/"9
�������������
����������
�������������������>���	�������
����
���������
������������:&�65 (�#�8!#�6�#563(9��D"2"4&<�3�("!�#4�"65 #(3&��&��23$5#4�8!#�6�#$$"($�#�6�5$#/"9

EFGHFIJKIL�HMN�OPFKQML
RSFPQTIL�HMN�UIFGKPLV�W���
�������������������
�����
�������	����������������������
��
����
�������
����������������WX���
YZ[\]̂[ _̂̀�a�bcdc̀a]�aeê �̀[a_ad̂ [ _̂̀�efè [̂�̀g�\hgicb̂ �èghf̀ ]̂]c_d�g̀g]e�̀g�a]]�jkZl�̂[\]gf̂ êm no

Opq
4 

30 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture ����������	����
�������������������������������������������������������������� �� ��������������!"#$%&'�()�*'�+�,'#(%-+(%)-�).�/0)%/'�.)&�()$�$'&.)&1%-2�.+/34(5�+-,�#(+..�.&)1�&'/&3%(1'-(�.)&6+&,789:;�<=>>�?@AB=CD�EFD�GDDCDC�=GH@IJE@KLEK@D�EA�IEE@ILE�MKI>=EN�LIGC=CIEDJOP�Q-/&'+#'�(0'�R3+4%(5�).�/+-,%,+('#�+$$45%-2�.)&�*)(0�.+/34(5�+-,�#(+..�$)#%(%)-#7P�Q1$&)S'�/)1$4%+-/'�6%(0�(0'�/)1$4'(%)-�).�(0'�#%TU1)-(0�$&)*+(%)-�+##'##1'-(�.)&�#(+..7P�Q-/&'+#'�(0'�$'&/'-(+2'�).�.+/34(5�$&)1)(',�+-,�('-3&',7P�V'S'4)$�+�$&)/'##�+-,�())4*)T�()�+##%#(�.+/34(5�6%(0�#$)3#+4�+//)11),+(%)-#�+-,�'1$4)51'-(�)$$)&(3-%(%'#�%-�(0'�&'2%)-7P�W&'+('�+�$&)/'##�(0+(�(&+/X#�(0'�(%1'�()�.%44�$)#%(%)-#7P�V'/&'+#'�$+5�2+$�*'(6''-�1+&X'(�&+('#�S#7�+/(3+4789:;�<=>>�DJEIY>=JF�A??A@EKG=E=DJ�HA@�HILK>EN�IGC�JEIZ�[@A<EFOP�Q-/&'+#'�(0'�-31*'&�).�'1$4)5''#�'-2+2',�%-�+/(%S'�%-,%S%,3+4�,'S'4)$1'-(�$4+-#7�P�V'S'4)$�)$$)&(3-%(%'#�+-,�+�$+(06+5�.)&�#3//'##%)-�$4+--%-2�6%(0%-�\]Q"7P� #̂(+*4%#0�+�\]Q"�4'+,'&#0%$�$&)2&+1�.)&�1%,U4'S'4�4'+,'&#7_̀



a

b��
��cde�c	
� bfghfijkil�hmn�
ofkpml 4 

31 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

��������	
��	�������	��������	�������������	��	�������	���	��������	�� 	������������	�!�� �							�� 	"�����#�	��������	��	$%%	�������	��	�"�	���&��	��	�����'���	��(�(� 	��	����)�	�� �)� ���	 �)��������	�����	�� 	���(������(	��!�� 	�"���	(����#*+�����,-./0	1233	4565378	78879:;<2:25=	>79	=;??5==27<	83@<<2<A	12:B2<	:B5	2<=:2:;:5	@<4	1233	5=:@C32=B	@	35@459=B28	897A9@D	>79	D24E35653	35@459=F GH

4 

32 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

33 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

34 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

�����������	
��	���
����	��	��		�����
������	��
�������	��
���	����
�	�������������	���	����	���������	�
������������	����	���� !�"��#$%&'&(&!�)*�+,-'.(/&(-!�0"�#+1�'%�& !�,/)23/�4)5!/�*)-�*(-& !-'$,�*))56�*'2!-6�3$5�$3&(-3/�-!%)(-.!%�& -)(, �&-3'/2/37'$,�-!%!3-. 6�/'*!/)$,�!5(.3&')$6�3$5�.)//32)-3&'8!�!9&!$%')$�3$5�!$,3,!4!$&�*)-�3//�: )�%!!;�)(-�%!-8'.!%<�=(-�5!!>�3$5�/)$,%&3$5'$,�%&3&!:'5!�.)$$!.&')$%�5!/'8!-�& !�&-(%&!5�?!3/<�@'*!<�A)/(&')$%<�*3-4!-%�$!!5�&)�>-)%>!-6�3583$.'$,�& !�$!9&�,!$!-3&')$�'$�3,-'.(/&(-!<�
"/&'43&!/B6�)(-�:)-;� !/>%��!$$!%%!3$%C3$5�*(&(-!�,!$!-3&')$%�)*��!$$!%%!3$%C/'8!� !3/& '!-6�4)-!�>-)5(.&'8!�/'8!%D�.-!3&!%�%&-)$,!-�$3&')$3/�%!.(-'&BD�3$5�5-'8!%�!.)$)4'.�3583$&3,!%�&)�3//�.)-$!-%�)*��!$$!%%!!<�� '%�:)-;�43&&!-%6�2!.3(%!�3%�& !�:)-/5�3$5��!$$!%%!!E%�>)>(/3&')$�,-):%C3$5�/3$5�3$5�:3&!-�2!.)4!�!8!$�4)-!�%.3-.!C)(-�:)-;�'$�!$ 3$.'$,�3,-'.(/&(-!� !/>%�43;!�'4>-)8!5� !3/& �3$5�*))5�%!.(-'&B�3�-!3/'&B<�FB�5'%.)8!-'$,�3$5�% 3-'$,�%.'!$.!G23%!5�-!%!3-. 6�:!� !/>�>-)5(.!-%�*!!5�4)-!6�(%'$,�/!%%6�!$%(-'$,�2)& � (43$�3$5�3$'43/� !3/& <�=(-�8!&!-'$3-B�HI

4 

35 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

36 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

�����������	
�����������������	�	��	�	���������
	����������	������	���
��
����������������	���
�������	������������������������	��������	�����	�����������������������	��������	��������	
	���
	��������	���������������	����
������������		����������������	�	������������
����	���������������������	���������	�����������	��	
�����	
	�����������	�������������
��	��������	��	����	�	����������	���������	������� �������������!"#$������	��%������	�&
���������	
�	������!"'(��)	�����*+$������	� 	�������������������!"',���
���	���	�����������-���������	���������!""+����	�.��	����������		��		�����������	�������	����������
�	�����
���������	�����	�������������	���	������
����������������	
�����������������
���������	����
�������������	��	
�����	������	�������	����	������� 	��	���������������
�����������
���������������
��	�
��	��	
������	�/����	����&������0�-��	�������!1$+�2	����	���	�	�3������	���		��		�,'""#4,*#+�����	
5��6�	
�����71#*8"'$4($"1��������	���
������	���������������������	����7���	���������
�������������8������	��%�7�	�8��)	�����*+$�7
���������8����	��-��7
���������8����	���	�-��������������&������	������7��	8���	��������	�����������	�	���������������
��	�
��	��	
������	�/����	������	���������0� 	��������(!#�9���	������������9���
���($*+�&�:���������-���	�3������	���		��		�,'""#����71#*8"'$4+'!'������	���������5��6�	
��
;<=>?<@AA@BB@@?@C;

4 

37 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

38 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

39 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

40 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

41 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

42 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

43 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

44 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

45 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

46 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

47 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

48 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

49 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

50 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

51 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

52 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

53 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

54 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture 

4 

55 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Consent Agenda

Type: Action

Presenter: John C. Compton, Chair of the Board and Committee Chair

Background Information

Items on the Consent Agenda are not presented or discussed unless a Board member 
requests that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda.  In accordance with the 
Bylaws, before calling for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the Chair will ask if 
any member of the Board requests that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda.  
The Bylaws provide that an item will not be removed from the Consent Agenda solely 
for the purpose of asking questions for clarification.  Those questions should be presented 
to the Secretary before the meeting.

Committee Action

If there are no requests to remove items on the Consent Agenda, the Chair will call for a 
motion to omit the reading of the minutes of prior meetings and to approve the items on 
the Consent Agenda.

5 

56 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
June 24, 2024

The University of Tennessee Board of Trustees met at 4:00 p.m. (EDT) on Monday, June 24, 2024.
The meeting was held in the Agriculture and Natural Resources Building, located at the University 
of Tennessee, in Knoxville, Tennessee.

Trustees Present: John C. Compton, Chair; Bradford D. Box; Charles Hatcher, Commissioner, 
Tennessee Department of Agriculture; Decosta E. Jenkins; Shanea A. McKinney; Christopher L. 
Patterson; William (Bill) C. Rhodes III; Donald J. Smith; David N. Watson; T. Lang Wiseman; and 
Jamie R. Woodson.

University Officers in Attendance: President Randy Boyd; Cynthia C. Moore, Board Secretary and 
Special Counsel; Chancellor Steve Angle (UT Chattanooga); Chancellor Peter Buckley (UT Health 
Science Center); Chancellor Yancy Freeman (UT Martin); Interim Chancellor Linda Martin (UT 
Southern); and Chancellor Donde Plowman (UT Knoxville). Other members of the UT senior 
leadership and administrative staff were also in attendance. 

Ms. Moore announced the presence of a quorum. The meeting was webcast for the convenience of 
the University community, the general public, and the media.

Opening Remarks by the Chair

Chair Compton began his remarks by indicating that the agenda for the meeting will be focused 
on President Boyd’s annual review and his potential reappointment as President of the University.

Requests to Address the Board

There were no requests to address the Board on matters pertaining to the agenda for the meeting.

Annual Presidential Performance Review

Chair Compton indicated that he believes the review process to be one of the most 
comprehensive annual reviews of a leader in higher education. The annual review covers the 
calendar year from January 1 through December 31, 2023, and measures the President’s 
performance against the goals and objectives set by the Board. The 360-degree review includes: 

∑ A self-assessment by the President, which includes performance measures for the prior year 
(2023) and goals for the current calendar year (2024).  The achievements and goals were 
shared by President Boyd at Board meetings held earlier in the year.

∑ An electronic survey to solicit views of the President’s performance from various 
constituency groups, including:

5.1 

57 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

Page 2
Board of Trustees

June 24, 2024

ÿ Members of the Board of Trustees, 
ÿ Chancellors and other Senior Leaders, 
ÿ Student, Faculty, and Staff leadership, and
ÿ Foundation and Alumni leadership. 

Chair Compton stated that he personally conducts interviews with the Lieutenant Governor and 
Speaker of the Senate Randy McNally and Speaker of the Tennessee House Cameron Sexton.
He also met with President Boyd earlier in the month to review: (1) his self-assessment 
statement, (2) the findings of the constituency survey and interviews, and (3) the 2024 goals and 
objectives.  Trustees Decosta Jenkins (Chair, Audit & Compliance Committee) and Bill Rhodes 
(Chair, Finance & Administration Committee) participated as observers in the review process. 
While the Committee Chairs had an opportunity to write their own statements of support or 
differences regarding the review of the President, they accepted the written report circulated to 
the Board of Trustees and shared publicly in the materials for this meeting (Tab 1).

The Board Chair shared the following highlights from the annual review:

∑ 97% of the survey respondents (92 individuals/76% response rate) felt that President Boyd’s 
performance exceeded expectations.  Notably, the overall approval rating and the highest 
performance categories remain generally consistent with previous results over the last six 
years.

∑ Of the categories measured, President Boyd received the highest ratings for: 
ÿ providing visionary leadership; 
ÿ articulationg strategic long-term goals for the UT System; and
ÿ providing leadership to ensure the University maintains highly effective relationships 

with the legislative officials and serving as an effective spokesperson for public higher 
education in Tennessee. 

Chair Compton remarked that it has been another momentous year for the entire UT System, 
but he felt that it was especially important this year, in light of the potential reappointment, to 
look at performance over the term of his presidency. From Fall 2019 through Fall 2023, the UT 
System has made tremendous progress:

ÿ Total Enrollment – 13.8% increase;
ÿ 6-Year Graduation Rate – 3.8% increase;
ÿ 4-Year Graduation Rate – 3.0% increase;
ÿ First-Year Retention Rate – 4.2% increase (from 81% to 85%);
ÿ Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded – 9.3% increase; and
ÿ Graduate and Professional Degrees Awarded – 17.1% increase.

5.1 

58 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

Page 3
Board of Trustees

June 24, 2024

Additionally, for Fall 2023, total enrollment reached an all-time high of 58,726 students, almost 
a 5% increase over the prior year, with UT Knoxville serving as key driver of this growth (20% 
increase in total enrollment over the last five years). 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the University raised more than $342 million in 
philanthropic support (second highest fundraising year, and for the fiscal year ending June 2024, 
the University is on track to exceed last year’s fundraising figures. The University also reached 
a new record in research and sponsored program expenditures of $437 million.  

Importantly, since 2019, for the UT System, the average amount of student debt (bachelor’s 
recipient borrowers) has declined by 4.4%. For 2022 (the most recently reported data), for the 
UT System, approximately 47% of bachelor’s recipients had no debt, representing a 12% 
improvement since 2018.

Chair Compton noted that with growth, there is often growing pains.  In this regard, the Board 
has asked President Boyd to focus his attention on: (i) assessing and resolving housing and 
parking issues at certain UT campuses; (ii) identifying potential options to eliminate barriers 
(e.g., capital funding restraints) to the University’s continued growth and expansion; and (iii) 
finding opportunities to ensure affordability of a UT education, while operating in an 
inflationary environment.  As the UT System strategic plan expires in 2025, President Boyd has 
been tasked with bringing forward a new UT System strategic plan. President Boyd has set 
forth an ambitious goal in terms of UT System enrollment growth (71,000 students by 2030).  
As demonstrated in the Education, Research, and Service Committee held earlier in the day, 
there have been healthy conversations pertaining to the University’s long-term enrollment 
strategy, which will continue.

Chair Compton closed his remarks by indicating that, based on any measure, President Boyd’s 
performance has been outstanding and opened the floor to comments from the Trustees and 
others present at the meeting. The Trustees shared their personal reflections of the University’s 
achievements under President Boyd’s leadership, including the challenges that were 
associated with a worldwide pandemic.  The Trustees also thanked Chair Compton for his 
efforts in leading a very thorough and transparent annual review process.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board approved the Annual Presidential Performance 
Review (Resolution 033-2024).

Appointment of the President of the University of Tennessee System

Chair Compton shared an overview of the history of President Boyd’s appointment, reminding 
the Board that Randy was appointed as the interim president in September 2018.  In March 
2020, the Board appointed him as president through June 30, 2025.  At the Winter 2024 meeting 
of the Board, President Boyd expressed his willingness to compete the decade (through June 
2030). At that meeting, by unanimous consent, the Board Chair was authorized to explore the 
reappointment of President Boyd, which process included consultation with representatives 

5.1 

59 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

Page 4
Board of Trustees

June 24, 2024

of the broader University community, including faculty, students, staff, and alumni. As part 
of the annual review process, an additional question was included in the electronic survey to 
engage support for Randy’s reappointment as president. There was overwhelming support 
(99%) for his reappointment. The subject of reappointment was also discussed with Lt. 
Governor McNally, Speaker Sexton, and Governor Bill Lee, who were each strongly 
supportive.  Additionally, the Board Chair raised the potential reappointment of Randy Boyd 
at the University’s sunset hearing in front of the Joint Committee on Government Operations, 
and the members encouraged the Board to retain Randy as president.

Chair Compton shared his personal views on the reappointment, noting that Randy’s 
optimism has been contagious within the UT System.  He also highlighted that Randy thinks 
“big” and has been drawn to strategic initiatives that make a real difference not only for the 
University, but for the State of Tennessee (e.g., UT Promise, UT Southern and Guaranteed 
Admission). Chair Compton shared that Randy is well-regarded as a visionary leader, with 
high integrity, a great level of enthusiasm, and as an innovative thinker. Chair Compton 
concluded his remarks by highlighting the complex environment in which the University 
operates, the overall challenges anticipated in the higher education landscape, and the
exceptional fact that Randy will not accept any compensation from the University for serving 
in the role. Chair Compton recommended that the Board reappoint Randy Boyd as president 
of the University and opened the floor for discussion.  The Trustees expressed their staunch 
support for the reappointment and thanked Chair Compton for ensuring that the 
reappointment process was inclusive and transparent.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, a roll call vote was taken, and the Board unanimously
approved the reappointment of Randy Boyd as President through June 30, 2030 (Resolution 034-
2024).

Following the reappointment, President Boyd stated that it has been the honor of his life to be 
able to serve as president of his alma mater. He expressed his gratitude to the Trustees for 
their support, and he thanked the administration, faculty, and staff for all their hard work in 
advancing the University. President Boyd also recognized his wife, Jenny, for her partnership 
and willingness to see him serve out the rest of the “Greatest Decade” in the history of the 
University.

Closing Remarks and Adjournment

With no further business to come before the Board, the Chair adjourned the meeting.

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/Cynthia C. Moore
Cynthia C. Moore
Secretary and Special Counsel

5.1 

60 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Approval of Board Meeting Dates (2025)

Type: Action

Background Information

Pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Bylaws, the Board of Trustees shall hold at least three (3) regular 
meetings annually on a day or days determined by the Board from year to year. 

A resolution to adopt the proposed meeting dates for the regular meetings of the Board for 
calendar year 2024 is presented below.

Resolved:  

The Board of Trustees hereby approves the following dates for the upcoming regular 
meetings of the Board.

2025
Winter Meeting February 27-28, 2025
Annual Meeting June 30 – July 1, 2025
Fall Meeting October 23-24, 2025

5.2 

61 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: 2024 Annual Report to the General Assembly

Type: Action

State law requires the Board of Trustees to submit an annual report to the General 
Assembly including enrollment information, financial information, and other 
information about the operations of the University.   The 2024 Annual Report follows
this summary.

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the 2024 Annual Report to the General 
Assembly as presented in the meeting materials, which shall be attached to this 
Resolution after adoption.

5.3 

62 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1

2024 
ANNUAL  
REPORT  
TO THE 

GENERAL  
ASSEMBLY

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE SYSTEM

5.3 

63 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

5.3 

64 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   3

INTRODUCTION

 From the President      6

MILESTONES

 Educational Excellence      8
 Capital Matters       10
 Expanding Research      12
 Fostering Outreach and Engagement   18

FINANCIALS

 Sources of Current Funds     20
 Uses of Current Funds      22
 Total Funds Invested      24

ENROLLMENT

 Fall Enrollment Headcount     26

The University of Tennessee is 
a statewide system of higher 
education with campuses in 
Knoxville, Chattanooga, Pulaski, 
Martin and Memphis; the UT Institute 
of Agriculture with a presence in 
every Tennessee county; and the 
statewide Institute for Public Service. 
The UT System manages Oak Ridge 
National Laboratory through its 
UT-Battelle partnership; enrolls 
about 62,000 students statewide; 
produces about 14,000 new 
graduates every year; and represents 
more than 454,000 alumni around 
the world.

The 2024 Annual Report was prepared by the 
Division of Marketing and Communications on 
behalf of Randy Boyd, president of the University  
of Tennessee System.

Editor: Jennifer Sicking 
Designer: Halley Kurtz

5.3 

65 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

4   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

5.3 

66 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   5

National Championship
The UT Knoxville Vols defeated 

the Texas A&M University Aggies 
in game three of the College 

World Series Finals by a score 
of 6-5 to capture the Vol’s first 

national championship in any 
sport since 2009.

5.3 

67 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

6   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

From the President 5.3 

68 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   7

As we move into the second half of the greatest 
decade in University of Tennessee history, we 
continue to accelerate in assisting Tennessee 
and the world. With a record number of students 
enrolling across our campuses (again) and more 
graduating each year ready to take their places as 
dentists, teachers, business leaders and farmers, 
UT aligns students’ passions with the state and 
country’s needs.

We have long known that there’s something special 
happening across the University of Tennessee 
System. Now, even more Tennesseans do too. 
Students want to study here and increasing 
numbers stay to complete their educations. 
This is the fifth consecutive year that we’ve set 
a new enrollment record across our campuses 
and institutes, underscoring our commitment to 
delivering an exceptional education that attracts 
students from all over. This enrollment surge across 
the UT System reflects the institution’s growing 
reputation and emphasizes the effectiveness of 
strategic initiatives aimed at increasing access 
and affordability. This includes initiatives such 
as guaranteed admissions for top-performing 
Tennessee high school students, so students and 
their families can plan their college experience with 
greater certainty.

As a system of campuses, we are working together 
to make applying to and attending UT easier 
than ever for Tennessee high school graduates 
through our participation in the national Common 
Application. We’ve also made it affordable with 
resources like the UT Promise scholarship, for 
which 66.7% of Tennessee families qualify. We want 
Tennesseans to know the dream of higher education 
doesn’t have to remain a dream. At the University of 
Tennessee, our students find their futures and leave 
ready to impact Tennessee and the world.

By relentlessly pursuing our mission of educating 
students, helping communities and making 
discoveries, we are making it the greatest decade 
in UT’s history. It’s not about making UT history; it’s 
about ensuring Tennessee’s prosperity. 

UT is Tennessee’s competitive edge for the future.

Sincerely, 

Randy Boyd  
President  
University of Tennessee System

5.3 

69 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

8   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Tennessee jobs requiring a high 
school diploma decreased by 90,000 
between 2008 and 2021. In the same 
time frame jobs requiring a bachelor’s 
degree increased by 361,000, 
according to the Tennessee Higher 
Education Commission.

Individuals with a bachelor’s degree 
earn $1.5 million more over their 
lifetimes compared to those with only 
a high school diploma.

The UT Promise scholarship program 
allows students from families with 
a household income of $75,000 or 
less to attend any UT campus free 
of tuition and fees; 66.7% of all 
Tennesseans qualify. With increased 
minimum awards from $100 to $500 
per semester, students have additional 
support for other college expenses like 
housing and books.

47% of UT students graduate debt free, 
a 12% improvement since 2018.

Educational Excellence

The University of Tennessee prepares students 
with college degrees to help Tennessee today 
and in the future. UT makes a college degree 
affordable, valuable and attainable.

5.3 

70 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   9

UT Celebrates Five Years of Record 
Enrollment
For the fifth consecutive year, the University of 
Tennessee System has set a record enrollment with 
62,206 students for fall 2024, a 5.9% increase from 2023.

“As we continue building the greatest decade in 
UT history, our enrollment growth, despite the 
challenges facing higher education nationwide, 
reflects our strong commitment to making a 
difference in the lives of our students and the 
communities we serve,” Boyd said.

The flagship campus at the University of Tennessee, 
Knoxville reported a 6.7% increase in enrollment 
with 38,728 students enrolled. UT Southern, the 
newest campus in the university system, achieved a 
7% increase in enrollment with 1,046 enrolled. Since 
joining the UT System in 2021, UT Southern enrollment 
has grown 19.4%. UT Martin saw an 8% increase with 
7,499 students enrolled, while UT Chattanooga saw 
growth of 4% with 11,834 students enrolled.

Retention rates are also on the rise, with UT 
Knoxville leading the way with a record-breaking 
91.9%. UT Southern reported a retention rate of 
77.2%, while UT Martin is at 77%. UT Chattanooga’s 
retention rate stands at 71.9%.

Additionally, UT produces an increasing number of 
graduates with 13,102 in the 2023 academic year, a 
2.3% increase from the year before.

5.3 

71 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

1 0   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Capital Matters

The University of Tennessee, the state’s oldest higher 
education institution, produces the most bachelor, 
master and doctoral graduates as well as most medical 
professionals in the state each year. Its building footprint 
and needs reflect that. The most significant challenge 
UT faces is adequate capital infrastructure to deliver on 
its statewide mission, especially considering a period of 
sustained record growth. While UT is very thankful for 
past state investments, this success has highlighted a 
need for increased state partnership in addressing capital 
infrastructure needs.

The University of Tennessee System has:

• The largest infrastructure of any state higher  
 education entity. 

• 298 (29%) of 1,012 buildings more than 60 years old. 

• Sixty buildings more than 100 years old. 

Along with new capital outlay for academic buildings, UT 
also faces a challenge with capital maintenance. 

• UT’s buildings account for 44% of all higher  
 education buildings in Tennessee. 

• From 2012 to 2023, UT received 21% of appropriated  
 higher education capital outlay funding. 

• Since FY21 capital maintenance appropriations  
 for the UT System have decreased by 60%.

5.3 

72 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1 1

World-Class Athletes
During the Paris 2024 Olympic Games, 34 former and current athletes from UT Knoxville, UT Chattanooga 
and UT Southern competed. Those who brought home medals are:

Gold

• Olivia Reeves, UTC,  
 USA weightlifting

• Christopher Bailey, UTK,  
 USA track 4x400m relay

• Kara Lawson, UTK,  
 USA women’s basketball, coach

Silver

• Erika Connolly, UTK,  
 USA swimming 4x100  
 Free relay

• Kelsey Robinson, UTK,  
 USA volleyball

Bronze

• Cierra Burdick, UTK,  
 USA basketball 3x3 

• Mona McSharry, UTK,  
 Ireland swimming 100 breast

• Uroš Plavšić, UTK,  
 Serbia basketball 

G
et

ty

G
et

ty

G
et

ty

G
et

ty

G
et

ty

G
et

ty

5.3 

73 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

1 2   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Making College 
More Affordable 
and Accessible 

5.3 

74 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1 3

All applicants are required to submit ACT/SAT test scores, regardless of class rank or GPA.

Guaranteed admission means an offer of admission to the University of Tennessee campus to which the 
applicant has applied (subject to satisfaction of the applicable eligibility requirements), but such offer 
does not guaranteed acceptance into any particular college, school, department, major or program. 
Students must meet campus application deadlines for guaranteed admission.

Class rank and GPA will be determined based on an applicant’s 6th semester transcript (i.e., following 
the completion of their junior year). · UT Knoxville calculates and utilizes a weighted Core GPA based on 
a student’s grades in 16 core academic subjects. Other UT campuses may choose to use other measures, 
including a student’s cumulative high school GPA.

From a Common Application for all campuses to guaranteed admissions, the 
University of Tennessee is working to make it easier than ever for Tennesseans 
to attend college.

All UT undergraduate campuses guarantee first-year admission to all Tennessee 
high school students who meet any of the following eligibility criteria:*

• Finish in the top 10% of their high school’s graduating class; or

• Achieve a 4.0 or higher cumulative GPA.

UT Knoxville also requires students to have an ACT Composite Score of 24 or 
higher (or equivalent SAT score) with both a 19-plus Math ACT sub score and 
19-plus English ACT sub score. UT campuses in Martin, Pulaski and Chattanooga 
require students to achieve a 3.2 or cumulative higher GPA and have an ACT 
composite score of 23 or higher (or an SAT score of 1130-1150 or higher).

“We want Tennessee high school students and their families to know how they 
can be guaranteed admission to the UT campus of their choice,” UT System 
President Randy Boyd said. “This allows us to make earlier admission offers for 
more Tennessee students, and it allows them to start planning for their college 
experience with more certainty.”

As part of efforts to expand access to higher education, all undergraduate 
campuses within the University of Tennessee System have joined the national 
Common Application (Common App). This widely used platform allows students 
to apply to multiple colleges and universities with a single application. By 
participating in the Common App, the application process has been significantly 
simplified, making it easier for students and their families to consider the full 
spectrum of opportunities within all UT campuses with just one application.

5.3 

75 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

1 4   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Expanding Research
Equipping Tennessee Farmers: Saving Tennessee Farms
For decades, the UT Institute of Agriculture has led the way in precision 
agriculture, making sure farmers can continue to provide food, fuel and fiber for 
Tennessee and the world. 

The need continues to grow.

The state lost 1.1 million acres of farmland to development from 1997 to 2017. 
Since 2017, the state has lost 432,941 more acres, according to University of 
Tennessee Center of Farm Management. Over the next three years, the state 
is expected to lose an additional 2 million acres. The American Farmland Trust 
recently ranked Tennessee third among states most threatened to lose farmland. 

To combat the farmland loss, UTIA researchers are focusing on technology 
and mechanics to improve row crop production—planting and harvesting, pest 
control, no-till, irrigation, even plant genetics. This work included using precise 
GPS maps of fields to determine where pest control measures or irrigation 
should be specifically applied to increase grain quality and yield.

Now, researchers have turned to more efficient poultry, beef and dairy production.

Precision livestock techniques involve improving an individual animal’s 
health and well-being through real-time monitoring of the animal’s condition. 
Behavior as well as biological and physiological changes are monitored, and 
environmental conditions are measured on an individual animal basis, allowing 
producers to make better animal-, herd-, or flock-management decisions.

Facilities are needed to support these studies, and UT AgResearch is 
responding. The Little River Animal Unit of the East Tennessee AgResearch and 
Education Center near Knoxville has installed robotic milkers for monitoring 
its dairy herd, and the Middle Tennessee AgResearch and Education Center at 
Spring Hill supports precision beef production and genetics research. Middle 
Tennessee is also constructing four state-of-the-art, commercial-sized broiler 
production houses along with a poultry research laboratory. 

Precision livestock research allows producers to make better animal-, herd-, or 
flock-management decisions. Automated real-time welfare monitoring systems 
(upper left), specialized feeding and weight recording systems (upper right and 
lower left), and robotic milkers that measure animal output are all examples 
of tools that UTIA researchers  are using to evaluate and improve production 
efficiencies for farmers and ultimately product quality and consumer prices.

5.3 

76 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1 5

5.3 

77 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

1 6   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

UT Drives Mobility Research
The mobility innovation economy represents a $2 trillion global opportunity 
as the ways in which people, cargo, cars and trucks move across the world 
continues to evolve. Whether consumers purchase electric vehicles or goods are 
dropped off via drones, UT is leading the way in this great mobility transition. 

UTK is leading a consortium of more than 250 public and private partners to 
advance work in the mobility sector through workforce development, use-
inspired research and development, and entrepreneurship. With a $1 million 
planning grant from the National Science Foundation, the Technology-Enhanced 
Advanced Mobility in Tennessee (TEAM TN) Engine is committed to building 
and leading in the advanced mobility innovation ecosystem that increases 
opportunities in the innovation economy, provides sustainable solutions for 
the planet and enhances the quality of life for Tennesseans. Partners include 
state agencies such as the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community 
Development and the Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development; industry partners such as Volkswagen and Denso; and faculty and 
consultants from UTC and the UT Center for Industrial Services.

UTC recently launched a new research institute to enhance educational 
opportunities connected to research and development. Key focus areas are 
mobility and transportation, quantum technologies, and computational science and 
engineering. These pillars leverage key UTC assets such as the Smart City Corridor 
real-life test bed, the test track and the quantum network node on campus.

Also, the state launched a new initiative, the Transportation Network Growth 
Opportunity or TNGO, to drive collaborative applied research and development 
mobility projects across Tennessee. UTK, UT Space Institute and UTC received 
inaugural TNGO awards to innovate on automotive cybersecurity, lithium-ion 
battery technology and wireless charging. 

5.3 

78 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1 7

UT Leads Nuclear Energy
The strong legacy of advanced energy and 
innovation in Tennessee continues to grow and 
strengthen as the world demands sustainable, clean 
energy from resilient sources.

Tennessee always has been a leader in nuclear 
energy thanks to science and technologists at Oak 
Ridge National Laboratory, Y-12 and other federal 
installations along with a top-ranked program at 
UT Knoxville. But with in-demand sectors such as 
artificial intelligence, advanced manufacturing and 
battery/energy storage, the need for more energy 
from diverse sources such as nuclear has increased. 
Tennessee has invested an initial $50 million into 
the Nuclear Energy Fund to grow the state’s 
nuclear development and manufacturing ecosystem 
by providing grants and assistance to support 
nuclear power-related businesses and workforce 

development initiatives. Gov. Bill Lee appointed J. 
Wesley Hines and Lang Wiseman to serve on the 
state’s advisory council. Hines is the UTK Postelle 
Professor, Chancellor’s Professor and retired head 
of the UTK Department of Nuclear Engineering. 
Wiseman is a former deputy governor and chief 
counsel to Gov. Bill Lee and currently serves on the 
UT Board of Trustees. UTK established the country’s 
first nuclear engineering program in 1957. 

With the great resurgence and excitement for 
nuclear energy thanks to the state’s fund, the 
demand for a diverse and skilled talent pipeline has 
expanded. The state awarded UTK funds to start 
a nuclear minor to help engineering students gain 
experience in the sector that can open more jobs in 
a nuclear energy career across the globe and in the 
Volunteer State. 

5.3 

79 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

1 8   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Fostering Outreach and Engagement
Meeting the Challenges
The University of Tennessee is dedicated to 
partnering with the state to address some of its 
most pressing challenges. In 2023, UT leaders 
launched the Grand Challenges project to tackle 
complex, interconnected issues that pose uncertain 
futures for Tennesseans, with a focus on advancing 
K-12 education, strengthening rural communities 
and combating addiction. In February 2024, UT 
will convene about 500 professionals from across 
the state who are working in these areas to foster 
collaboration, share best practices and drive 
meaningful improvements for Tennessee’s future.

5.3 

80 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   1 9

Healthy Tennesseans:  
Thriving Communities 
Across the state of Tennessee, UT Health Science 
Center faculty and students can be found helping 
others. For some, that has meant taking to the road.

In 2023, a mobile health unit expanded health care 
access in rural Lake and Lauderdale counties thanks 
to a $3.9 million grant from the Health Resources 
and Services Administration.

Lake and Lauderdale counties have the second- and 
13th-highest poverty rates among the 95 Tennessee 
counties, respectively. Lake County has the highest 
incidence of low birth weight and smoking. 
Lauderdale County has the second-highest rates of 
diabetes and adult obesity and the fourth-highest 
adult smoking rate. Life expectancy in both counties 
is below state and national averages.

The 24-foot-long mobile health unit, which has a 
check-in area and exam room, is staffed by a family 
nurse practitioner and medical assistant or licensed 
practical nurse. It offers appointments two days 
each week in Lake County and two days each week 
in Lauderdale County. Undergraduate and graduate 
nursing students learn alongside professionals while 
helping to provide care.

“This is what we do in nursing,” said College 
of Nursing Dean Wendy Likes. “We go where 
we are needed and to those who need us. This 
is an opportunity for us to partner with the 
communities in these two counties to improve the 
health of its residents and to educate students in 
a rural setting in the hope that they will choose to 
practice where access is limited and their expertise 
is so greatly needed.”

UTHSC students and faculty provide 
health care in rural Lake and 
Lauderdale counties with the help of 
a mobile health unit.

5.3 

81 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2 0   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Sources of Current Funds†

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

†Unaudited

‡ Actual revenue numbers with net tuition and fees

Total: $3,382,846,680.81

5.3 

82 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   2 1

Gifts, Grants and Contracts  

$1.013 billion

State Appropriations 

$904.1 million

Net Tuition‡ 

$679.5 million

Auxiliary 

$360.3 million

Independent Operations 

$79 million

Other 

$331.5 million

Federal Appropriations 

$15.1 million

5.3 

83 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2 2   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Instruction: $831.6 million

Research: $379.4 million

Student Aid: $88.3 million

Public Service: $236.1 million

Auxiliary Enterprises: $305.1 million

Academic Support: $296.8 million

TOTAL: 2.74 BILLION

Uses of Current Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024†

5.3 

84 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   2 3

†Unaudited

Institutional Support: $239.2 million

Physical Plant: $239 million

Student Services: $149.7 million

Independent Operations: $55.8 million

Depreciation: $183.8 million

5.3 

85 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2 4   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Total Funds Invested for the Benefit of UT

0

500

250

750

1250

1750

1000

1500

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

  CIP   SEP. ENDOWMENTS   LIFE INC. TRUSTS   CHAIRS OF EXCELLENCE   UC FOUNDATION

MILLIONS

5.3 

86 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   2 5

CIP SEP. ENDOWMENTS LIFE INC. TRUSTS CHAIRS OF EXCELLENCE UC FOUNDATION TOTAL ASSETS

2015 $823m $15m $44m $137m $131m $1.151b
2016 $820m $14m $43m $140m $125m $1.141b
2017 $911m $15m $42m $152m $135m $1.255b
2018 $976m $10m $43m $160m $149m $1.339b
2019 $1.025b $9m $40m $167m $154m $1.396b
2020 $990m $9m $38m $170m $164m $1.370b
2021 $1.324b $10m $45m $210m $204m $1.792b
2022 $1.294b $8m $34m $183m $194m $1.713b
2023 $1.366b $6m $33m $199m $199m $1.803b
2024 $1.537b $8m $28m $223m $221m $2.017b

UT Knoxville student paddleboards at Suttree Landing Park

5.3 

87 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2 6   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000 8000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

0 200 400 600 800 1200

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

1000

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000 40000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

0 10000 20000 30000 40000 50000 60000 70000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

0 10000 20000 30000 40000 50000 60000 70000 80000

2020
UNDERGRAD

224
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1,159
GRAD-PROF

1,805
TOTAL

3,188

2021
UNDERGRAD

265
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1,188
GRAD-PROF

1,784
TOTAL

3,237

2020
UNDERGRAD

791
GRAD

21
TOTAL

812

2021
UNDERGRAD

852
GRAD

24
TOTAL

876

2020
UNDERGRAD

24,254
GRAD-ACADEMIC

5,558
GRAD-PROF

747
TOTAL

30,559

2021
UNDERGRAD

25,067
GRAD-ACADEMIC

5,891
GRAD-PROF

743
TOTAL

31,701

2020
UNDERGRAD

10,311
GRAD

1,384
TOTAL

11,695

2021
UNDERGRAD

10,016
GRAD

1,441
TOTAL

11,457

2020
UNDERGRAD

41,184
GRAD

11,375
TOTAL

52,559

2021*
UNDERGRAD

42,207
GRAD

11,776
TOTAL

53,983

UT SYSTEM

UT KNOXVILLE

UT CHATTANOOGA

UT SOUTHERN

UT MARTIN

UT HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER

2020
UNDERGRAD

6,395
GRAD

722
TOTAL

7,117

2021
UNDERGRAD

6,007
GRAD

705
TOTAL

6,712

Fall Student Enrollments

  Undergrad

  Undergrad

  Undergrad

  Undergrad

  Undergrad

  Undergrad

  Grad

  Grad-Academic

  Grad-Academic

  Grad

  Grad

  Grad

  Grad-Prof

  Grad-Prof

5.3 

88 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  T E N N E S S E E  SY S T E M   |   2 7

% 5-YR CHANGE

% 5-YR CHANGE

% 5-YR CHANGE

% 5-YR CHANGE

% 5-YR CHANGE

% 5-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

1-YR CHANGE

N
UNDERGRAD

2,603
GRAD/PROF

879

%
UNDERGRAD

5.6%
GRAD/PROF

7.1%

%
UNDERGRAD

19.0%
GRAD/PROF

15.9%

N
UNDERGRAD

1,681
GRAD-ACADEMIC

735
GRAD-PROF

8

%
UNDERGRAD

5.8%
GRAD-ACADEMIC

11.1%
GRAD/PROF

1.0%

%
UNDERGRAD

26.0%
GRAD-ACADEMIC

32.3%
GRAD/PROF

8.7%

N
UNDERGRAD

263
GRAD/PROF

191

%
UNDERGRAD

2.6%
GRAD/PROF

13.7%

%
UNDERGRAD

-0.6%
GRAD/PROF

14.8%

N
UNDERGRAD

66
GRAD/PROF

2

%
UNDERGRAD

7.0%
GRAD/PROF

6.3%

%
UNDERGRAD

27.9%
GRAD/PROF

61.9%

N
UNDERGRAD

575
GRAD/PROF

(17)

N
UNDERGRAD

18
GRAD-ACADEMIC

12
GRAD/PROF

(52)

%
UNDERGRAD

9.2%
GRAD/PROF

-2.4%

%
UNDERGRAD

4.8%
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1.1%
GRAD/PROF

-3.2%

%
UNDERGRAD

6.5%
GRAD/PROF

-4.4%

%
UNDERGRAD

75.9%
GRAD-ACADEMIC

-2.2%
GRAD/PROF

-8.7%

2022
UNDERGRAD

44,280
GRAD

11,752
TOTAL

56,032

2023
UNDERGRAD

46,421
GRAD

12,305
TOTAL

58,726

2024
UNDERGRAD

49,024
GRAD

13,184
TOTAL

62,208

2022
UNDERGRAD

27,039
GRAD-ACADEMIC

5,988
GRAD-PROF

778
TOTAL

33,805

2023
UNDERGRAD

28,883
GRAD-ACADEMIC

6,617
GRAD-PROF

804
TOTAL

36,304

2024
UNDERGRAD

30,564
GRAD-ACADEMIC

7,352
GRAD-PROF

812
TOTAL

38,728

2022
UNDERGRAD

9,884
GRAD

1,399
TOTAL

11,283

2023
UNDERGRAD

9,982
GRAD

1,398
TOTAL

11,380

2024
UNDERGRAD

10,245
GRAD

1,589
TOTAL

11,834

2022
UNDERGRAD

896
GRAD

38
TOTAL

934

2023
UNDERGRAD

946
GRAD

32
TOTAL

978

2024
UNDERGRAD

1,012
GRAD

34
TOTAL

1,046

2022
UNDERGRAD

6,165
GRAD

703
TOTAL

6,868

2023
UNDERGRAD

6,234
GRAD

707
TOTAL

6,941

2024
UNDERGRAD

6,809
GRAD

690
TOTAL

7,499

2022
UNDERGRAD

296
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1,160
GRAD-PROF

1,686
TOTAL

3,237

2023
UNDERGRAD

376
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1,122
GRAD-PROF

1,625
TOTAL

3,123

2024
UNDERGRAD

394
GRAD-ACADEMIC

1,134
GRAD-PROF

1,573
TOTAL

3,101

* 2021 UT System numbers include UT Southern; prior years do not include UT Southern.

5.3 

89 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

2 8   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 4

Kn ox v i l l e  |   Ch at ta n o o ga  |   Pu l a s K i   |   Ma rt i n  |   Me M Ph i s   |   in s t i t u t e o f ag r i C u lt u r e  |   in s t i t u t e f o r Pu b l i C se rv i C e

5.3 

90 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: June 25, 2024

Item: Resolution Appointing a Managerial Group for U.S. Government 
Contracts

Type: Action

Background Information

The Department of Energy, Department of Defense, and other federal agencies with which 
the University has contracts impacting national security, require the Board to appoint a 
Managerial Group and delegate to that group responsibility for negotiation, execution, and 
administration of U.S. government contracts.  Only members of the Managerial Group will 
receive security clearance to access classified information related to these contracts.  

A new resolution is required to update the members of the Managerial Group.

[Resolution in the Required Form is attached.]

5.4 

91 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution ___-2024

Appointment of the Managerial Group for Contracts between
The University of Tennessee and the United States Government

Pursuant to the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE 
THAT:

1. Those persons occupying the following positions at The University of Tennessee shall be 
known as the Managerial Group, having the authority and responsibility for the 
negotiation, execution, and administration of U.S. Government contracts as described in 
the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual:

President 
Chief Financial Officer
General Counsel
Vice President for Academic Affairs, Research, and Student Success
Associate Vice President for Research
Vice President for National Labs 
Chancellor, The University of Tennessee, Knoxville 
Vice Chancellor for Research, The University of Tennessee, Knoxville
Executive Director, The University of Tennessee Space Institute
Facility Security Officer
Insider Threat Program Senior Official

2. The Chief Executive and the members of the Managerial Group are cleared, or will be 
processed for clearance, to the level of The University of Tennessee’s facility clearance.  If
uncleared, pending issuance of the requested access authorization, such individual shall 
be excluded from all access and shall not participate in any decision or other matter 
pertaining to the protection of classified information and/or special nuclear material.

3. The above-named Managerial Group is hereby delegated all of the Board’s duties and 
responsibilities pertaining to the protection of classified information and/or special 
nuclear material released to The University of Tennessee.  

4. In the future, when any individual is appointed to the Managerial Group as an additional 
member or replacement member, such individual shall immediately be processed for an 
access authorization at the same level as The University of Tennessee’s facility clearance.  
Pending issuance of this requested access authorization, such individual shall be 
excluded from all access and shall not participate in any decision or other matter 
pertaining to the protection of classified information and/or special nuclear material.

5.4 

92 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

5. The following named officers and members of the Board of Trustees of The University of 
Tennessee shall not require, shall not have, and can be effectively excluded from access 
to all classified information and/or special nuclear material released to The University of 
Tennessee and do not occupy positions that would enable them to affect adversely the 
policies or practices of The University of Tennessee’s performance of classified contracts 
for the U.S. Government:

Officers

Name Title
Steven R. Angle Chancellor, University of Tennessee at Chattanooga 
Peter F. Buckley, MD Chancellor, University of Tennessee Health Science 

Center 
William H. Byrd III Vice President, Institute for Public Service
Tiffany Carpenter Vice Chancellor for Communications and Marketing
Keith S. Carver, Jr. Senior Vice Chancellor/Senior Vice President, 

University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture
Brian J. Daniels Chief Audit and Compliance Officer
Yancy E. Freeman Chancellor, University of Tennessee at Martin
Luke Lybrand Treasurer
Linda C. Martin Chancellor, University of Tennessee Southern
Cynthia C. Moore Secretary and Special Counsel to the Board of Trustees
Carey Whitworth Vice President for Government Relations and Advocacy
Kerry W. Witcher Vice President for Development and Alumni Affairs 

Members of the Board of Trustees

Name Title
Bradford D. Box Trustee
John C. Compton Trustee, Board Chair
Charles Hatcher Tennessee Commissioner of Agriculture, Ex Officio
Decosta E. Jenkins Trustee
Shanea A. McKinney Trustee
Christopher L. Patterson Trustee
William C. Rhodes III Trustee
Donald J. Smith Trustee
David N. Watson Trustee
T. Lang Wiseman Trustee
Lisa Patel Student Trustee (non-voting) (*)
Jamie R. Woodson Trustee

Effective this ___th day of October, 2024.

5.4 

93 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

Certificate

I hereby certify that the above Resolution was adopted by the Board of Trustees of The 
University of Tennessee on the date set forth above.

______________________________________
Cynthia C. Moore
Secretary and Special Counsel 

5.4 

94 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Items from the Audit and Compliance Committee

Type: Action

Audit and Compliance Committee agenda items approved in the Committee and coming 
forward to the full Board Consent Agenda are in the meeting book of the Committee and 
not repeated here. These items include the following:

∑ Board Policy on Research Security
∑ Board Policy on Settlement of Claims and Litigation

5.5 

95 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Items from the Education, Research, and Service Committee

Type: Action

Education, Research, and Service Committee agenda items approved in the Committee 
and coming forward to the full Board Consent Agenda are in the meeting book of the 
Committee and not repeated here. These items include the following:

∑ Board Policy on Institutional Accreditation
∑ Proposed New Academic Programs: 

ÿ Occupational Therapy Doctorate, UTHSC
ÿ Doctor of Philosophy in Agricultural Leadership, Education, and Communication, 

UTK 
∑ Proposed Academic Program Modification: 
ÿ Bachelor of Science Business Administration in Business Analytics, UTC

∑ Tenure Recommendations Requiring Board Approval
ÿ Grant of Tenure upon Initial Appointment
ÿ Grant of Tenure upon Early Consideration

5.6 

96 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - XI. Consent Agenda — Action 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Items from the Finance and Administration Committee

Type: Action

Finance and Administration Committee agenda items approved in the Committee and 
coming forward to the full Board Consent Agenda are in the meeting book of the 
Committee and not repeated here. These items include the following:

∑ Affiliation Agreements:
ÿ UT Foundation 
ÿ UT Athletics Foundation, UTK
ÿ UT Health Science Center with Methodist Healthcare
ÿ UT Health Science Center with East Tennessee Children’s Hospital 

∑ Board Policy on Affiliated Foundations
∑ Capital Projects:
ÿ UTIA Master Plan (Component of New Ten-Year UTK CMP)
ÿ UTK Lindsey Nelson Stadium Budget Increase
ÿ UTM New Residence Hall
ÿ UTHSC Campus Master Plan Amendment 

∑ UTC Voluntary Retirement Incentive Plan
∑ Report on Uses of FY 2024 Tuition and Fee Revenue 
∑ Acquisition of 611 West Jefferson Street, Pulaski, TN (UTS)

5.7 

97 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

ANNUAL
REPORT

6.1 

98 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Our Mission
To raise financial, public 

and political support for the 
University of Tennessee.

9
Alumni 
Engagement

14
Campus 
Highlights

4
Message from 
the President

10
Online Giving

6
UT Foundation 
Leadership

7
Fundraising

11
Foundation 
Operations

13
President’s 
Award

6.1 

99 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Message from the President

Fueled by Generosity, Driven by Success

As we reflect on fiscal year 2024, I am filled with immense gratitude and pride for 
what we have achieved together. Thanks to the collective efforts of our team and the 
incredible generosity of our donors, the University of Tennessee Foundation surpassed 
a historic fundraising milestone, raising over $430 million—our highest total to date. This 
unprecedented achievement represents more than just numbers; it reflects the power of 
community and the unwavering belief in the transformative impact of education.

With the support of over 86,000 alumni and friends, we have made significant strides 
in advancing the University’s mission across our campuses and institutes. From record-
breaking contributions for student scholarships to landmark gifts that will shape the 
future of our colleges, each donation has made a tangible difference in the lives of 
students, faculty and staff.  The generosity, passion and trust of our donors fuel our 
progress and empower us to continue creating opportunities for the future. 

As we look ahead, there is much to be excited about. The momentum we’ve generated 
in fiscal year 2024 sets the stage for even greater achievements in the years ahead. 
We remain committed to growing and strengthening the services we provide to 
our donors and alumni, and to further expanding the reach and impact of the 
University of Tennessee.

Thank you for standing with us on this remarkable journey. Together, we are shaping the 
future of higher education and ensuring that the University of Tennessee continues to 
thrive for generations to come.

With deepest gratitude and excitement for what’s ahead,

Kerry Witcher

President & CEO
University of Tennessee Foundation

The current results from 
FY24 demonstrate the 

unwavering support and 
dedication of our alumni 

and donors, as well as the 
exceptional commitment 

of our statewide staff.
– Kerry Witcher, UTFI President

5FY24 Annual Report4

6.1 

100 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Foundation Leadership

Foundation Board of Directors
2023 - 2024

Ron Frieson, Chair

Alan Wilson, Vice Chair

Philip Wenk, Past Chair

Kerry Witcher, President & CEO

Randy Boyd, University President

Lee Ann Adams

Jeannie Beauchamp

Isaac Bennett

Karen Bowling

Douglas Brown

Peter Buckley

Emily Capadalis Love

Yancy Freeman

Doug Haney

Judi Herbert

Renee Iacona

Debbie Ingram

Shanea McKinney

Phenise Poole

Arthur Sparks, Jr.

Charles Wagner, III

Richard Warren

Fundraising

Total Gifts

Total Donors

$430,338,113
$18,977,810 $24,373,040 $60,056,026 $313,385,563 $6,014,083 $6,148,865 $1,382,726

86,751
4,877 4,522 6,762 65,549 4,988 2,190 1,777

As we look to make this the greatest decade in 
University of Tennessee history, we must dream 
bold and big.

. . . University of Tennessee President, Randy Boyd

*

*Donor totals do not equal the sum of all campuses because many donors give to multiple campuses and programs.

7FY24 Annual Report6 FY24 Annual Report6 FY24 Annual Report6

6.1 

101 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Source

38+62+M38%

Alumni
$162,568,880

Friends
$92,745,590

Employees
$18,719,189

Corporate
$74,934,862

Foundation
$65,086,097

Other*
$16,283,495

22+78+M22% 4+96+M4% 17+83+M17% 15+85+M15% 4+96+M4%

* Other includes public charities, grants, government agencies and other organizations.

Purpose

$214,492,353
Operating

$54,801,228
Capital

$94,890,968
Deferred

$66,153,564
Endowment

Gift Size

$0 - 
$999

$1,000 - 
$9,999

Giving Range

$10,000 - 
$24,999

$25,000 - 
$99,999

$100,000 - 
$999,999

$1,000,000+

$17,147,613

$35,194,401

$19,343,092

$40,053,564

$75,295,828

$243,303,615

Bequests

Insurance Real Estate

$89,995,979 Total deferred and 
planned pledges booked 
in FY24

	l The Foundation has $1,076,420 in outstanding 
insurance policies and $10,657,682 in university 
outstanding insurance policies as of June 30, 2024.

	l The Foundation has not received any gifts that 
would place a financial liability on the university.

	l Real Estate Acquisitions during FY24 – 10 
properties with an appraised value of $960,900.

	l Total properties owned during FY24 – 18 properties 
with an appraised value of $6,659,301.

	l Total properties sold during FY24 – 7 with a 
contract price of $458,400.

	l Total current properties listed for sale – 4 with 
appraised value of $1,756,500.

Alumni Engagement

Total Number of Alumni

Total Number of Engaged Alumni

Levels of Engagement

UT Advocacy Network

454,372
296,050
12,798 27,671 49,204 179,177 33,886 2,786

Level FY24
5 484

4 10,412

3 129,193

2 3,211

1 152,750

0 143,757

9,418 1,273
Total Members Total New Members

9FY24 Annual Report8

6.1 

102 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Online Giving

Total Online Gifts

49,915

Total Online Giving

$7,919,042
UTIA

$151,296 $755,650
HSC

$644,197
UTC

$5,157,975
UTK

$522,969
UTM

$100,911
UTS

$586,045
UTAA

Includes all gifts processed online.

Average Online Gift

$158.65

Online Giving Growth 
Over Five Years

FY19 $3,632,556

FY20 $4,281,583

FY21 $6,287,745

FY22 $6,671,512

FY23 $7,059,419

FY24 $7,924,042*

*FY24 12.25% increase

Giving Days

7% Giving day dollars 
up systemwide

Giving Days Total 
Dollars

$1,843,583

Includes all gifts processed online.

Foundation Operations

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

$48,839,581

$0 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $15,000,000 $20,000,000 $25,000,000

Other*

Advancement
Assessment

Investment
Earnings

Endowment
Administrative Fee

University
Direct Support $19,737,572

$11,546,716

$7,300,000

$1,915,358

$8,339,935

*Other includes prepayments from accumulated savings, marketing revenue, alumni program and discretionary gifts.

$45,366,104
Personnel

Operating

$0 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $15,000,000 $20,000,000 $25,000,000 $30,000,000 $35,000,000 $40,000,000

$33,675,059

$11,691,045

FY24 Annual Report10

6.1 

103 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

Staff Size Job Family Breakdown

Central 59

UTC 26

HSC 22

UTK 124

UTM 13

UTS 4

UTIA 10

IPS 1

UTFI President’s Award

The UTFI President’s Award is a highly prestigious 
award which recognizes outstanding achievements 
by advancement staff in applying creative concepts 
to improving performance, advancing fundraising 
and alumni engagement efforts, and promoting a 

better understanding of the systemwide advancement 
activities and asset management services of the UT 
Foundation. Recipients are nominated by their peers, 
and a committee of previous year recipients select up 
to six employees to receive the honor.

Nominees are selected using the following criteria:

	l Promotes a better understanding of the systemwide major gift fundraising activities and alumni engagement 
initiatives.

	l Continually strives to improve the overall performance of the Foundation by meeting or exceeding individual, 
departmental and system goals.

	l Provides innovative and creative approaches for the solution of problems and meeting special needs in 
assigned areas of responsibility.

	l Demonstrates commitment to personal and professional growth and organizational development.
	l Supports teamwork and continuous improvement efforts of the advancement division through collaborative 

efforts.
	l Fosters employee and customer loyalty.
	l Serves as a mentor to other employees.
	l Provides vision through leadership efforts.
	l Adheres to core values and possesses integrity.

Congratulations to the 2024 recipients!

Amanda Cook Ryan Jones Josh Leavitt Phyllis Moore

Jennifer Schlicht Laura Zimbrick

259 Including 15 new 
positions added 
in FY24.

11%

19%

11%

12%

41%

6%

Administrative

Advancement Services

Alumni Relations

Communications/Marketing

Development

Finance/Operations

13FY24 Annual Report12

6.1 

104 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

15FY24 Annual Report14 FY24 Annual Report14 FY24 Annual Report14

6.1 

105 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee 
at Chattanooga

A record-breaking 
year at Chattanooga’s 

university. 
Building Connections. Inspiring 
Generosity.  
In a historic fundraising year at the University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga, $60,056,026 was raised 
from 6,762 donors. This is the single largest fundraising 
year in UTC’s history. In addition to the dollars raised, 
UTC engaged 49,204 alumni, which is an almost 10% 
increase from the previous year. 

As a part of this celebrated year of building 
connections and inspiring generosity for Chattanooga’s 
university, a transformational gift of $30 million was 
made by Gary Rollins (‘67) and his wife Kathleen to 
assist in the campaign to expand UTC’s Fletcher Hall 
– the current home of the Gary W. Rollins College of 
Business. The new 81,000-square-foot expansion will 
include state-of-the-art classrooms, advanced analytics 
labs and collaborative spaces for teaching, research 
and community engagement. Serving as a hub for 
Chattanooga and our region, new programming will 
be designed to promote hands-on, multi-disciplinary 
student learning and research. These improvements 
will further equip students with the skills, knowledge 
and experiences to support the 21st century workforce. 

School of Nursing Celebrates 
$8 Mil l ion Gift 
The largest single gift in UTC School of Nursing history, 
the Kennedy Foundation, Inc. gave a gift of $8 million 
to name the future home of the School of Nursing the 
Dorothy and Jim Kennedy Health Sciences Building.

Named after the parents of the current Kennedy 
Foundation trustees – Jim Kennedy III, Elizabeth 
Kennedy Spratlin and Molly Kennedy (‘82) – this will be 
the first building on UTC’s campus to be named after 
an alumna. Dorothy (‘82) received a degree in English 
from UTC while attending at the same time as her 
daughter Molly.

The new 90,000 square foot building will allow a 
152% enrollment increase and feature state-of-the-
art classrooms and a cutting-edge simulation lab. 
The Unum Group, a leading international provider 
of workplace benefits and services, also made a 
$500,000 gift and became the School of Nursing’s 
Premier Mental Health Partner at the new Dorothy and 
Jim Kennedy Health Sciences Building. The partnership 
will leverage Unum Group’s qualified clinical team’s 
expertise to serve students and faculty in the 
classroom. Construction on the new building will begin 
in the fall of 2024, with completion slated for 2026. 

A Monumental Mocs Give Day  
The fourth annual UTC Mocs Give Day in October 
2023 showcased the collective power of giving. The 
event raised nearly $1,735,000 from 2,131 donors and 
showcased the impact and value of small gifts. Almost 
80% of all gifts given during the campaign were $100 
or less. With a record number of student donors, 211 in 
total, nearly 400 UTC faculty and staff and 900 alumni 
gave. A top performer, UTC Athletics raised over $1.1 
million from more than 700 donors.

17FY24 Annual Report16 FY24 Annual Report16 FY24 Annual Report16

6.1 

106 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

FY24 Annual Report18 FY24 Annual Report18 FY24 Annual Report18 1919

6.1 

107 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee 
Health Science Center

“Our vision is 
meaningful, not just 

for us, but for everyone 
in Tennessee.”

– Peter Buckley, MD, Chancellor

Every day at the University of Tennessee Health 
Science Center, we work to fulfill our vision – Healthy 
Tennesseans. Thriving Communities.

The outstanding philanthropic support of our faculty, 
staff, students, alumni, community partners and 
generous donors is critical to helping us move toward 
our vision and mission to change lives from one end of 
the state to the other. 

A Soulful Collaboration
With a philanthropic gift from the Kemmons Wilson 
Family Foundation, in collaboration with the Soulsville 
Foundation and Soulsville community, convenient and 
affordable primary health care is coming to the historic 
Soulsville neighborhood in Memphis through the new 
Health Science Center Health Hub: Soulsville

The hub will offer primary care for adults and children, 
health coaching, school nursing, youth intervention 
specialists and eventually mental health counseling. It 
will serve a community with thousands of elementary 
to college-age students. 

Smiling in Kingsport 
Thanks to the Healthy Smiles Initiative, a $94 million 
state-funded, multiyear effort to improve oral health 
care throughout Tennessee, along with the UTHSC 
College of Dentistry, community leaders, partners and 
supporters, the new Kingsport Dental Clinic of the 
Appalachian Highlands is a reality. 

Generous donations from Delta Dental of Tennessee/
Smile180 Foundation, BlueCross BlueShield of 
Tennessee and Eastman will help equip the clinic 

where fourth-year dental students from the college will 
provide dental services under supervision of faculty. 

Coming Home
Alvin Crawford, MD, the first African American to 
attend and graduate from the College of Medicine, 
returned to his alma mater for a celebration and book 
signing of his autobiography, “The Bone Doctor’s 
Concerto: Music, Surgery, and the Pieces in Between.”

During the event, several faculty, students and alumni 
in attendance brought multiple copies of his book for 
signature. In addition to his book signing, Dr. Crawford 
visited local high schools in the Memphis area and 
talked with students interested in a career in health 
sciences.

Dr. Crawford (‘64) and his wife have established 
the Alvin H. and Alva J. Crawford Endowed Medical 
Scholarship to support medical students.

“Dr. Crawford epitomizes the UT Health Science 
Center mission,” said Brigitte Grant, vice chancellor 
for advancement. “The commitment by Dr. and Mrs. 
Crawford to student scholarships aligns with the 
university’s priority to educate and support medical 
education.”

Leaving a Legacy
Chancellor Peter Buckley, MD, and his wife, Leonie, 
graciously hosted the university’s Legacy Society 
members in their home for a special event honoring 
them and their commitment to the university. The 
personable nature of the event was deeply important 
as the group was thanked for their gifts. 

Through thoughtful charitable planning, many 
supporters have been able to make a more 
meaningful gift than they ever thought 
possible. By including the university in 
their estate plans, they are welcomed 
as members of the Legacy Society.

21FY24 Annual Report20 21FY24 Annual Report20 FY24 Annual Report20

6.1 

108 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

FY24 Annual Report22 23FY24 Annual Report22 23FY24 Annual Report22

6.1 

109 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee, 
Knoxville

A total of 69,226 donors from across the country and 
around the world showed their unwavering support for 
the University of Tennessee, Knoxville, by contributing 
a historic $332 million to the state’s flagship university 
during the 2023-24 fiscal year. This marks the third 
consecutive record fundraising year for the Knoxville 
campus and the first to surpass $300 million.

The funds given by donors help address needs and 
enable growth throughout the university. They directly 
benefit students through new programs and initiatives, 
including scholarships, student services, athletics 
facilities and other areas.

“Year after year, I am inspired by the depth of support 
from Volunteers everywhere who not only love this 
university, but believe wholly in the work we are doing,” 
said Chancellor Donde Plowman.

Highlights In Scholarships, Facilities 
and Programming
Thanks to donor support, more than 10,000 privately 
funded scholarships were awarded to students during 
the 2023-24 academic year, providing more access to 
the Volunteer experience, reducing financial stress and 
contributing to UT Knoxville’s record student retention 
rate of 91 percent.

Philanthropic highlights from the year include the 
recent naming of the Natalie L. Haslam College of 
Music in honor of one of the university’s most generous 
benefactors. In April, the Denbo Center for Humanities 
and the Arts was named after alumnus and Vol football 
star Don Denbo, whose generous commitment to the 
benefits of a humanities-based education will serve 
current and future members of the UT community.

With the help of donor funds, new opportunities have 
been created and programs have been enhanced 
across campus to support students. One example 
is the new career development office in the College 
of Communication and Information. Thanks to the 
generous support of alumna Suzanne Sackleh, the 
center develops partnerships and career pipelines 
for students through employer spotlights, industry 
networking nights, a career fair and curated 
student programming.

Supporting Transformational Change
Donor gifts continue to support transformational 
change on campus and improvements to the Volunteer 
experience, including the Croley Nursing Building, 
which is set to open in fall 2025, and a new Haslam 
College of Business building, which is expected to be 
completed in fall 2027.

Gifts came from alumni and friends in all 50 U.S. states 
and dozens of countries around the globe. More than 
2,600 UT seniors joined in the generosity this 
year, making gifts to areas most meaningful 
to them through the Senior Impact 
program. In November, UT Knoxville saw 
an outpouring of generosity from 
Volunteers worldwide during the 
11th annual Big Orange Give, with 
more than 11,400 gifts made in 
just one day.

Transformative 
fundraising year 
reaches historic 

milestone.

Totals reflect UT Knoxville and UT Institute of Agriculture combined.

FY24 Annual Report24 FY24 Annual Report24 FY24 Annual Report24 2525

6.1 

110 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee 
Institute of Agriculture

Creating Real. Life. Solutions.

The University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture 
(UTIA) has a presence in all 95 counties in Tennessee 
and provides Real. Life. Solutions. through its land-
grant mission of research, teaching and extension. 
UTIA is one of only a handful of American agricultural 
institutes, a designation that demonstrates the 
importance of agriculture and its partnering industries 
in Tennessee. 

Transitions
The previous fiscal year 
was capped by the 
naming of Keith Carver 
as UTIA’s senior vice 
chancellor and senior 
vice president. Dr. Carver 
brings more than 25 years 
of UT executive experience to 
the job, including serving, most 
recently, as chancellor of UT Martin. A former director 
of development at the UT College of Law, Dr. Carver 
also served as interim vice chancellor for development 
and alumni affairs at the UT Health Science Center and 
assistant vice chancellor for development at UT Martin.

That experience proved valuable in fiscal year 2024, 
as UTIA’s fundraising and constituent engagement 
operation experienced significant transitions, 
beginning with the appointment of Charley Deal as 
the vice chancellor of advancement. Like Dr. Carver, 
Dr. Deal is a long-tenured leader at UT, having 
served as vice chancellor of advancement at UT 
Martin. “Charley’s deep-rooted understanding of 
advancement, coupled with his uncanny ability to 
build and lead high-performing teams, is a winning 
combination,” said UTFI President Kerry Witcher. 

Under Dr. Deal’s direction, the UTIA advancement 
team has grown in numbers, with a strategic emphasis 
on improving efficiency and building meaningful 
relationships with UTIA alumni, donors, students, 
faculty, staff and Tennessee’s broader agricultural 
community.

Food Science 
Sensory Lab
UTIA received a major gift 
from McCormick Foods to 
renovate the Food Science 
Sensory Lab. Alan Wilson, 
who is the current chair of 
the UT Foundation Board 
and the retired chairman and 
CEO of McCormick, matched 
the company’s $300,000 
gift, for a total of $600,000.

Grateful Ag Day
A new UTIA tradition, Grateful Ag Day is a stewardship 
event that invites students in the Herbert College of 
Agriculture and the UT College of Veterinary Medicine 
to write thank you notes to the top 400 donors in 
each college. In its third year, students wrote 736 
personalized letters—a new record!

Honoring Jim and Judi 
Herbert
UTIA joined UT Knoxville in 
encouraging students to write 
scholarship thank you letters. 
At a ceremony honoring the 
memory of Jim Herbert, his 
wife Judi told the crowd that 
he loved receiving the letters 
so much that he would send 
personal notes back to students.

Pet Memorials
The UTIA Office of Advancement supports partnering 
veterinary practices that contribute to the Companion 
Animal Fund in memory of a pet. In fiscal year 2024, 
the fund raised nearly $33,000 from 284 gifts given 
by 57 donors. UTIA mailed more than 2,250 letters of 
consolation to pet owners.

Bruce C. and Cleo G. Cox 
Scholarship Endowment
UTIA received a gift of nearly $1.3 million from 
the estate of Cleo Cox for the Bruce C. and 
Cleo G. Cox Scholarship Endowment. Mrs. 
Cox taught fourth grade for 37 years and 
diligently reserved funds so that she 
would one day be able to support 
young people pursuing higher 
education.

The UTIA numbers are included in the UT Knoxville totals on page 24.

FY24 Annual Report26 FY24 Annual Report26 FY24 Annual Report26 2727

6.1 

111 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

FY24 Annual Report28 29FY24 Annual Report28 29FY24 Annual Report28

6.1 

112 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee 
at Martin

Skyhawk experience. . . 
education with connections 

that last a lifetime.

The University of Tennessee at Martin (UTM) is a 
modern university built on history and tradition. Since 
its beginnings in 1900 as the Hall-Moody Institute, 
UT Martin has been a fixture in the West Tennessee 
educational landscape and beyond. A diverse campus 
with a vibrant community spirit that continues long 
after graduation day, the Skyhawk experience offers 
education with connections that last a lifetime. 

Freeman Named Chancellor
The 2024 fiscal year was marked with leadership 
transitions on the UT Martin campus. Dr. Yancy 
Freeman began his tenure as the University’s 12th 
chancellor in August 2023. Dr. Freeman’s experience is 
deeply rooted in the University of Tennessee System 
with 25 years in various roles at UT Chattanooga where 
he most recently held the post of vice chancellor for 
enrollment management and student affairs.

The “Take Flight with Freeman Tour” was a series of 
visits by Chancellor Freeman to introduce himself to 
people in West and Middle Tennessee. The successful 
tour included 10 stops at high schools, UTM Regional 
Centers and other locations. At each stop, there was 
a reception where people could meet and speak with 
the chancellor, and over the course of three months, 
Dr. Freeman was able to meet numerous alumni and 
community members. 

Curtis-Swafford Leads Advancement 
In May 2024, together, the UT 
Foundation and UT Martin 
announced the appointment 
of Jeanna Curtis-Swafford 
as the vice chancellor for 
advancement. Curtis-
Swafford served as the 
interim vice chancellor 
for advancement for six 
months prior. 

Curtis-Swafford has been a 
consistent leader and successful 

fundraiser for the campus since 1992. During her tenure 
with UT Martin, she established a planned giving 
program, served as the campaign director for the 
recent $178 million RISE campaign and is a graduate of 
UT Martin’s WestStar Leadership Program.

“Jeanna’s record of fundraising success speaks for 
itself, and coupled with her embodiment of the 
Skyhawk spirit, I have no doubt that she will lead the 
UT Martin advancement team in continued success 
and new levels of achievement,” said UT Foundation 
President Kerry Witcher. “I am thrilled to welcome her 
into this role.”

Gift Supports Endowments and 
Campus Enrichment
UT Martin Chancellor Emeritus Dr. Nick Dunagan (‘68) 
and his wife, Cathy (‘68), made a $750,000 pledge 
through their estate plans. The funds will support the 
existing Casey Dunagan World Travel Endowment 
made in memory of their son and will be used for 
world travel for student innovators in the Ned Ray 
McWherter Institute. The pledged funds will also be 
used to establish the Dunagan Alumni Center Public 
Space Enhancement Endowment, which will be used 
to support refreshing public spaces of the Dunagan 
Alumni Center, which is named in their honor.

FY24 Annual Report30 FY24 Annual Report30 FY24 Annual Report30 3131

6.1 

113 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

FY24 Annual Report32 33FY24 Annual Report32 33FY24 Annual Report32

6.1 

114 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

The University of Tennessee 
Southern

“Together, we’re building 
a brighter future, one gift 

at a time.”

A total of 2,190 donors showed their support for The 
University of Tennessee Southern raising a record-
breaking $6 million. Fiscal year 2024 was highlighted 
by increased donor engagement and historic giving. 

This significant year in giving will fuel opportunities 
for students, faculty and staff, and enable our 
university to enhance the personalized education and 
intimate campus environment that gives our Firehawk 
community its unique appeal. Academic initiatives, 
scholarships and faculty support expand our deeply 
rooted campus connections, making a difference at 
home and around the world. 

Largest Gift in 150-Year History
In a momentous occasion for UT Southern, a generous 
gift of 600 acres was bequeathed by the late Dr. 
Bruce Wilson, a respected cardiologist and native 
of Prospect, TN. This gift, the largest in the 150-year 
history of the campus, was officially secured following 
a declaratory judgement by Judge Joe Townsend of 
the Shelby County Probate Court on January 10, 2024.

Dr. Wilson, who passed away in December of 2022, 
had approached UT Southern with the vision of 
using his farm for educational purposes while also 
recognizing the necessity of generating income to 
support the facility. His dream was to see the land used 
in a way to enrich the educational experience at UT 
Southern. 

The transformative gift will continue to be utilized 
for its current farming purposes, leased to local 
farmers. The proceeds from these leases will flow 
into unrestricted funds, directly enhancing student 
experiences. This arrangement honors Dr. Wilson’s 
initial vision and ensures sustainable and impactful use 
of the land. 

Inaugural FIRE Week Surpasses 
Goals
In February, UT Southern held its first-ever FIRE Week, 
a campaign designed to ignite support and enthusiasm 
among its students, faculty, alumni and friends. The 

Office of Advancement initially set a goal to engage 
250 donors, and the UT Southern community quickly 
surpassed this target early in the week, leading to the 
establishment of a new ambitious stretch goal of 650 
donors. 

Thanks to the generosity of the UT Southern 
community, an incredible 1,200 donors contributed 
more than $50,000. The response from the community 
exceeded all expectations, showcasing the profound 
spirit of generosity and commitment within the 
Firehawk family. 

Scholarships and Endowments on 
the Rise
With our students, scholarships are critical to our 
mission to provide affordable education to the 
communities of southern Middle Tennessee. Since 
joining the UT System in 2021, we have grown the 
scholarship endowment fund from zero to almost 
$1,000,000.

“With the addition of several new scholarships 
and unrestricted endowments, we are creating an 
environment where education and athletic excellence 
can truly flourish” said UT Southern Vice Chancellor for 
Advancement Evan Beech.

 – Evan Beech, Vice Chancellor for Advancement

FY24 Annual Report34 FY24 Annual Report34 FY24 Annual Report34 3535

6.1 

115 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

1525 University Avenue
Knoxville, TN 37921-4848

865-974-2115
utfi.org

6.1 

116 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

ANNUAL REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2023–2024

6.2 

117 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.2 

118 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

3

Kim White
Vice Chancellor of Advancement,  
Executive Director of the UC Foundation

A LETTER FROM THE 
VICE CHANCELLOR

ADVANCEMENT’S  
MISSION

The University of Chattanooga 
Foundation fosters a culture 
of philanthropy, strategically 
manages its endowment for  
financial growth, and promotes 
community engagement to  
advance the mission and 
vision of The University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga.

Unbelievable, Phenomenal, Amazing, Incredible! These are just a few 
of the words that sum up the results of the single-largest fundraising 
year in the history of the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga.  

This university’s alumni, donors and friends stepped up in an 
unbelievable fiscal year 2024, helping UTC’s Advancement team raise 
$60,056,026 from 6,762 donors from June 1, 2023 – July 30, 2024. 
This fundraising total represents a 325% increase from the previous 
fiscal year in dollars raised to support students, faculty and staff. 

This fundraising success showcases the incredible work that’s 
happening on our campus and our community realizing that an 
investment in UTC is an investment in the future of our city and 
region. 

In addition to the generous support of Gary and Kathleen Rollins 
with a $30 million gift to support the expansion of Fletcher Hall and 
home to the Gary W. Rollins College of Business, UTC’s School of 
Nursing received its largest gift in history - an $8 million gift from 
the Kennedy Foundation, Inc. to name the Dorothy and Jim Kennedy 
Health Sciences Building, the new home for the School of Nursing. 

With a record Mocs Give Day and a banner year for UTC Athletics, 
UTC also engaged 49,204 alumni, almost a 10% increase from the 
previous year. Whether it was attending alumni events or visiting 
campus, our alumni want to be involved with their alma mater.  

Philanthropy is the ‘good to great’ for our campus, and we’re  
excited to work with our alumni, donors and partners to make  
new opportunities possible in the years to come. 

Go Mocs! 

BUILDING CONNECTIONS.
INSPIRING GENEROSITY.

6.2 

119 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

4

Created when the University of Chattanooga became part of the UT System in 1969, the UC Foundation 
was founded to ensure that the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga continued to have autonomy and 
local insight into campus needs and as a way for our donor and alumni community to partner to address 
those needs. 

The UC Foundation is an essential tool that has proved invaluable for UTC. In addition to funding the 
personnel and operations budget for the UTC Advancement team, the UC Foundation has invested in  
campus real estate and successfully managed and grown our endowment, benefiting our campus, faculty,  
staff, students and alumni.

FOUNDATION PURPOSE

FY 2024

FY 2024 - 2025 GOALS

Dollars Raised

$60,100,000
Number of Donors

6,762

FUNDRAISING

RECENT FUNDRAISING TOTALS

*EPISODIC GIFTS INCLUDED IN TOTALS: 

FY 2024: $30 Million, Gary W. Rollins College of Business Future Building Fund 

FY 2024: $8 Million, Dorothy and Jim Kennedy Health Sciences Building Fund 

FY 2024: $3 Million, Nursing Unrestricted Annual Fund 

FY 2024: $1.9 Million, Cerasi & Temple Endowed Scholarship 

FY 2024: $2.8 Million, Ridge Rollins College of Business Unrestricted Fund 

FY 2024: $1.8 Million, McBrayer Family Endowed Accounting Scholarship

FY 2022: $1.5 Million, Frost Family Investment Fund

FY 2021: $1.5 Million, Boyd UT Promise Scholarship Endowment 

 

 

6.2 

120 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

5

FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

Ending FY24 with 33 staff members, including 
students, we grew our team to properly 
align our staff to campus needs. Continuing 
our strong partnership with the University of 
Tennessee Foundation, Inc. to coordinate 
our offerings with the advancement mission 
of the UT System, we contracted nearly 
$522,000 of services for the fiscal year. 

ADVANCEMENT TEAM

FOUNDATION OPERATIONS

In FY24, the UC Foundation funded 81% of UTC Advancement’s personnel costs and 100% of the operational 
costs of both UTC Advancement and the UC Foundation. Through agreements with the college deans, the 
Chancellor’s office and UC Foundation-owned Housing, UTC contributed 19% of the Advancement personnel 
costs.

6.2 

121 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6

ENDOWMENTS AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 

ENDOWMENT BALANCE BY CATEGORY

ENDOWMENT VALUE

ENDOWED FUNDS PROVIDED AWARDS FROM:

43  
Professorship  
Endowments

6  
Faculty Development 

Endowments

41  
Academic Program  

Endowments

291  
Scholarship  

Endowments

In coordination and consultation with LCG Associates, Inc. Investment Advisors, the UC Foundation 
Investment Committee elects and continuously assesses fund managers of the portfolio. One of our most 
active committees, the Investment Committee, comprises talented investment professionals from the 
Chattanooga area whose combined expertise covers all portfolio asset allocations.

The investment objective of the UC Foundation portfolio is that the average annual growth in market value 
from investment results will outpace our spending rate of 4% and expenses of 1% plus average inflation. The 
one-year return at June 30, 2024, was 13.5%; the portfolio generated an annualized return of 6.3% over a 
five-year period on June 30.

11  
Institutional Support  

Endowments

6.2 

122 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

7

THE SMILE FUND

The Student Managed Investment Learning Experience (SMILE) Fund has grown to have approximately 
$1,081,480 in assets under management by UTC students as of June 30, 2024. Started with an initial 
investment of $250,000 and an additional investment of $250,000 in 2015 and 2019, respectively, the  
SMILE Fund was established for students to gain knowledge of portfolio management, investment  
strategies and equity valuation techniques.  

In August 2024, the SMILE Fund received an additional $2 million in assets under management or AUM 
from the UC Foundation split among five accounts: the Traditional Fund (+$1,000,000 AUM), Strategic 
Fund (+$250,000 AUM), Growth Fund (+$250,000 AUM), Core Fund (+$250,000 AUM) and Value Fund 
(+$250,000 AUM). The latter three are new-style funds designed to focus on specific stock categories  
and allow three more students to be portfolio managers. These five funds are meant to coordinate to  
drive forward the overall student experience and performance of the SMILE Fund.

SMILE FUND VALUES

6.2 

123 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

8

FOUNDATION OWNED HOUSING

In the late 1990s, the UC Foundation made a game-changing investment in the UTC campus by developing 
Scott L. Probasco South Campus, taking UTC from a commuter school to a residential community. To extend 
the life of the buildings in South Campus, we are currently financing a 6-year renovation project equaling 
a $52 million investment. While UTC provides management of South Campus, the UC Foundation uses the 
revenues generated from the housing to operate and maintain the buildings, fund the residence programs 
like paying the resident assistant stipends, cover the debt services for the bond and complete renovations.

SCOTT L. PROBASCO SOUTH HOUSING OVERVIEW

6 Building Complex with 5 Residential Buildings  
and 1 Activity Building on 10.55 Acres 

1,623  
Bedrooms

1,691  
Beds

722  
Parking Spaces

823,963 Total Square Footage

Guerry Apartments 

63,150 sq. ft.

Decosimo Apartments 

131,072 sq. ft.

Stophel Hall Apartments 
386,020 sq. ft.

Walker Apartments 

84,391 sq. ft.

UC Foundation Apartments 
151,828 sq. ft.

Stacy Town Center 
7,502 sq. ft.

Starting in 2019, all buildings have undergone extensive  
refurbishment with a renovation cost of $52M.

6.2 

124 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

9

ALUMNI ENGAGEMENT

NUMBER OF ENGAGED ALUMNI 

49,204

UTC ALUMNI FACTS

TOTAL NUMBER OF ALUMNI 

74,000

Top 5  
Alumni States

1. Tennessee
2. Georgia
3. Florida
4. Alabama
5. North Carolina

of Alumni Live in  
Hamilton County

of Alumni Live in  
Tennessee

10% INCREASE FROM PREVIOUS YEAR

6.2 

125 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

10

UC FOUNDATION TRUSTEES
July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024

Kelly Alling
Co-Founder 
Chattanooga Preparatory  
School

Steven Angle
Ex Officio
Chancellor 
University of Tennessee  
at Chattanooga 

David A. Belitz ’00
CEO 
Lupton Company, LLC

Randy Boyd
Ex Officio  
President 
University of Tennessee  
System 

Betsy Blunt Brown
CEO 
Pendleton Square  
Trust Company

Alan L. Cates
Attorney, Partner 
Husch Blackwell LLC

Nancy J. Collum ’78 
Underwriter 
BrightBridge Capital, Inc. 

D. Michael Costello ’75, ’96
CPA/Shareholder  
Elliott Davis

David F. DeVaney 
President 
NAI Charter

Greg Eaves ’79, ’86
CFO 
EPB of Chattanooga

Suzanne Forlidas ’75, ’87
Attorney (Retired)  

D. Keith Helton ’87
Physician, CEO 
One to One Health

Ken Jones ’17, ’19
Senior Director of Procurement 
EPB 

Mike Kramer
Chairman 
Southeastern Trust Company

F. Scott LeRoy ’79  
Vice President/COO 
Southeastern Salvage 

Ashley Nichols ’09
Senior Investment Officer 
Unum 

Kathy Kelley O’Brien ’90 
Director, Market Development,  
Insurance Sales
Unum

Brett W. Rousch 
COO 
ELD Associates, LLC 

Roger P. Smith ’73 
Vice President (Retired) 
BB&T Huffaker Insurance

Edna Varner, Ed.D. ’71, ’82
Senior Advisor, Leading  
and Learning
Public Education Foundation 

R. Marie Webb
Sr. Vice President of Human  
Resources and Chief Talent  
& Inclusion Officer 
EPB 

Kim H. White ’82 
Ex Officio
Vice Chancellor of Advancement 
and Executive Director of the  
UC Foundation 

Frank Williamson
Founder/CEO 
Oaklyn Consulting

Kerry Witcher 
Ex Officio
President/CEO 
University of Tennessee  
Foundation

Clint Wolford
President 
Wolford Development, Inc.

Albert Woodard ’74 
Chairman/IT Consulting 
KaZee Inc.

OFFICERS 

CHAIR  
Ashlee Patten  
President and CEO,  
Portfolio Manager 
The Patten Group, Inc.

VICE CHAIR 
Todd B. Womack ’95 
President/CEO 

Bridge Public Affairs  

TREASURER  
Steven L. Frost ’75
Chairman 
Tuftco Corp.

SECRETARY  
Roy D. Vaughn 
Sr. Vice President and  
Chief Human Resources Officer 
BlueCross BlueShield  
of Tennessee

IMMEDIATE PAST CHAIR 
Douglas A. Brown ’85
Senior Vice President,  
Financial Advisor  
UBS Financial Services 

LIFE TRUSTEES 

Charles D. Cofield ’15

Fred Decosimo

Joseph F. Decosimo 

Zan Guerry

John Thornton

ADVISORS 

Jason T. Allen
Market Executive,  
Regions Bank 

Mike D. Brookshire  
Managing Partner,  
River Associates  
Investments

Ellen Brownell 
Managing Member,  
Rhyme Portfolio  
Solutions

Will Clegg 
Partner,  
HHM CPAs

Pat Murphy 
Partner,  
Holland & Knight LLP 

John W. Shearburn 
Senior Advisor,  
Quantum Capital Group  
& Edison Partners

Kirby W. Yost 
Attorney,  
Chambliss, Bahner  
& Stophel

6.2 

126 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

11

6.2 

127 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

12

615 McCallie Avenue, Dept 6806
Chattanooga, TN 37403-2598

give.utc.edu

6.2 

128 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 25, 2024

Item: Annual Institutional Review Executive Summary, Academic Year 
2023-24, UTHSC (College of Medicine)

Type: Information 

Background Information

Attached is a copy of the AIR Executive Summary, Academic Year 2023-24. This report 
provides a summary of the findings of the most recent Annual Institutional Review (AIR), 
along with the proposed action plan of UT Health Science Center’s College of Medicine 
(UTHSC-COM).  The action plan outlines in greater detail oversight priorities for 
Academic Year 2024-25. The action plan, including performance monitoring procedures, 
was reviewed and adopted by UTHSC-COM’s Graduate Medical Education Committee.

This report is required to be submitted to the Board of Trustees but does not require any 
formal action. These materials are being presented to the Executive Committee to ensure 
compliance by UTHSC-COM with ACGME institutional accreditation standards.

6.3 

129 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

130 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

131 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

132 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

133 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

134 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

135 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

136 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

137 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

138 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

139 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

140 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

141 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

142 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

143 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

144 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

145 



2024 - Fall Meeting of the Board of Trustees - Informational Items 

6.3 

146 


	Agenda
	VII.  FY 2025-26 Operating Budget Appropriations Request for Specialized Units—Action
	VIII. Adoption of UAPA Rule (All Campuses), Chapter 1720-01-01,  Classifying Students In-State and Out-of-State ― Action (Roll Call Vote)
	IX.  Appointment, Initial Compensation, and Other Terms of Employment of  University Officer — Action
	X. Proposed Strategic Plan, UT Institute of Agriculture
	XI.  Consent Agenda — Action
	A.  Minutes of Prior Meetings
	B. 2025 Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule
	C. Annual Report to the General Assembly
	D.  Resolution Appointing a Managerial Group for U.S. Government Contracts
	E.  Items from the Audit and Compliance Committee
	F.  Items from the Education, Research, and Service Committee Committee
	G. Items from the Finance and Administration Committee

	Informational Items
	Annual Report - University of Tennessee Foundation
	Annual Report – University of Chattanooga Foundation
	Annual Institutional Review Executive Summary, UTHSC


